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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Chan Kim Fai
Lo Kam Cheung Patrick
Wong Lai Ming
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Chan Kim Fai
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Yuen Man Ying
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Chan Kim Fai

Wong Lai Ming

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Chan Kim Fai (Chairman)
Leung Shing Chiu

Lo Kam Cheung Patrick
Wong Lai Ming
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Yuen Man Ying
Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Deacons

5th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
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Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
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Hong Kong
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
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Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries,
| am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

Hong Kong's outbound tourism has further recovered upon
resumption of both normal passenger flight schedules and the
worldwide tourism infrastructure. In addition, the continued
weakening of the Japanese Yen has attracted more tourists to
travel to Japan. The Group upholds our caring services and
perpetually innovative ideas, as a team, we have provided
dedicating services and the development of global package tours
which resulted in satisfactory growth in revenue from both travel-
related and hotel businesses in 2024, however, the overall profit
had slightly declined due to the increase in the operation cost of
travel-related business. During the Year, the Group recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$1,632.5 million (2023: HK$1,366.0
million), representing an increase of 19.5% compared with last
year. Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$373.2 million
(2023: HK$339.8 million), representing an increase of 9.8%.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$70.7 million (2023: HK$71.7 million), representing a slight
decrease of 1.3% compared with that of last year. For the details
of our business performance, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the Year (2023: HK$NIl). For the details of the special
dividend which was declared by the Board on 20 January 2025
at 6 Hong Kong cents per Share (14 December 2023: special
dividend of 7 Hong Kong cents per Share), please refer to Note 11
of the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The outbound travel market of Hong Kong experienced a strong
recovery in 2024. According to the statistic of the Hong Kong
Immigration Department, the number of outbound Hong Kong
residents exceeded 100 million, representing an increase of
45% compared with 2023. This indicates the eager demand of
residents for outbound travel, bringing forth excellent opportunities
for the development of the Group’s business. During the Year, the
Group successfully launched multiple package tours with direct
charter flights, taking our customers to explore the diverse charms
of Japan, from Sendai in Tohoku to Tokushima in Shikoku, and
onward to Yonago in San'in, then finally extending to Hokkaido, to
present our customers with diverse array of Japanese scenery.

In April 2025, there is the grand opening of the Osaka-Kansai
Expo in Japan. This is the third time that Japan is organising the
World Expo which is taking place in Osaka, a city renowned for its
numerous popular attractions and delicious cuisine, and will attract
large number of tourists. The Group has been designated as one
of the official overseas agents for the 2025 Osaka-Kansai Expo in
Japan, and will meticulously plan various package tours and study
tours, also to reserve Expo tickets, flight tickets and hotels for FIT
tourists with coordinated travel guidelines, to assist the tourists in
planning their Expo journeys.

In response to the booming trend of northbound tourism of Hong
Kong residents, the Group launched the “Refined Routes in China
(ECRED) " travel series with a slogan of “Travelling China
with Heartfelt Care (A0 1Rz E) ", successfully enhancing
our brand recognition. In 2024, the Group even has launched
three rounds of the “Special Cruise of Three Gorges of Yangtze
River and EGL (BRI =X « RRIEEM) " offering superior dining
experience that caters to the tastes of Hong Kong residents and
redesigning our services and entertainment on board to pamper
the needs of Hong Kong tourists, to be consistent with the
Group's heartfelt philosophy of “Spirit of Hospitality R 15 1) 7,
to bring the country's beauty to our travellers.

202443  Annual Report 2024 007
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Apart from Japan and China, other markets in Southeast Asia,
especially Vietham, have gained significant praise from travellers
and become popular destinations. The Group focuses on
identifying attractions, cuisine, and accommodations that cater
to the interests of Hong Kong travellers to provide innovative
and unique travel experiences. Through these efforts, the Group
continues to innovate and enhance its market competitiveness
in different travel routes, and is committed to delivering
comprehensive and caring quality service.

To ensure the Group’s travel business continues with a sustainable
development, a robust comprehensive strategy has been actively
carried out for customer diversification. In September 2024, the
Group launched a new series of package tours called “Travelling
with Parents (85 & X F&47) ”. The online promotional activities of
this series have become a smash hit on social media, notably the
theme video with more than 1 million views on Facebook. This has
effectively reached our target young customer segment ranging
from 25 to 40 years of age. Nevertheless, the Group continues
on the “Family Travels (i Fh3#)” themed package tour that
launched successfully in 2023, with a focus on refining the theme
by addressing travel concerns of young parents and expanding
travel destinations. Despite the general market downturn in the
second half of the Year, these products sustained similar results
compared to last year, which is inspiring.

The Group is committed to serving travellers as our business core.
To achieve product transparency and service quality enhancement,
the Group newly established Facebook group “Happy Sharing
Group of EGL Package Tours (EGLER & k1T B B0 D ZEE4R) 7,
to collect traveller reviews and comments, to disclose customer
feedbacks to the public, so that potential customers, our tour
guides, employees and management can access the actual
comments. Among the feedbacks, the “Century Oasis (42 &% M
%) " special cruise of the Three Gorges of Yangtze River departing
in December this Year received extremely high praise, which
reflects our continuous efforts for service quality improvement.
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The Group has launched a membership programme “EGL Travel
Rewards (BEim#EE IR " in gratitude to loyal customers. The
number of members has grown rapidly since launch which
is remarkable. Members not only can earn bonus points with
spending, but also enjoy the programme’s exclusive events
and discounts. The Group will further upgrade the membership
system bringing to its members more exclusive and convenient
services and rewards. Besides, the Group continues to push for
digital transformation, and the Company’s website has received a
comprehensive upgrade with refreshed look, faster access speed
and better user experience. The new website interface allows
users to find product information of various travel destinations with
ease. The booking process is also simplified, making it convenient
to purchase products and enroll tours online.

To enhance interactions with customers, the Group has
participated in a number of traveling and wedding exhibitions.
Travel influencers, professional photographers and experienced
tour guides are invited to share first-hand travel information and
experiences. The Group has also organised multiple sharing
sessions of “Travelling & Sharing G » 73 %) . During the sharing
sessions, customers can ask experts directly for travel planning
tips and to enhance their confidence in future trip planning. These
sharing sessions held by the Group are always sold-out and
popular, and customer feedbacks are very enthusiastic which in
turn bring in more sales. Through these sharing sessions, the
Group further understands travellers’ needs, in order to design
well-fitted travel solutions in the future.

20244 %  Annual Report 2024 009
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to nurturing young talents and is closely
cooperating with post-secondary institutions to provide internships
for students majoring in relevant disciplines such as tourism and
hospitality. The Group also cooperates with the Travel Industry
Council and the non-profit organisation “VolTra (&%) " to offer
short-term internships for young people who wish to learn more
about the travel agency business. The internship also provides
specialized guidance and allowances in order to help them
obtain licenses and understand the development of the tourism
industry, thereby contributing to the ongoing development of the
industry. In addition, the Group regularly participates in career
expos and industry sharing events, allowing students to gain a
deeper understanding of the tourism industry. At the same time,
the Group also actively hires both individuals who have reached
retirement age and women who are unable to work full-time due
to family responsibilities, and provides suitable work arrangements
to help these people re-enter the job market and realise their
true self-worth. Furthermore, the Group collaborates with training
institutions appointed by the Employees Retraining Board, to
serve as guest speakers at different schools for employment
introductions and information sharing with students and provision
of on-the-spot interview opportunities.

The Group is committed to environmental protection, and
encourages employees to participate in the “Earth Hour (1 Ek—
/NBF)” campaign organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature
each year by switching off lights and unnecessary power supplies
within a designated one-hour period to support environmental
protection. In addition, the Group also actively helps those in need.
In January 2024, a magnitude 7.6 earthquake struck Japan’s
Ishikawa Prefecture, prompting a state of emergency across the
entire prefecture. Houses collapsed, some families faced water
and electricity outages, a shortage of supplies. Due to the lack
of drinking water, disaster victims were forced to consume water
from melted snow. To assist with the Japan Government in posting
disaster reconstruction, | personally travelled to the area for a two-
day trip, and, on behalf of the Company and in my own name,
donated a total of 15 million Japanese Yen directly to Ishikawa
Prefecture. On 3 April 2024, a 7.2 magnitude earthquake occurred
in the ocean off the east coast of Taiwan. | personally went to the
site to express condolences, understood the situation, and, on
behalf of the Company and in my own name, donated a total of 3
million New Taiwan Dollars directly to Hualien County, hoping they
could return to normal as soon as possible.
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The Group regularly arranges employees to participate in various
volunteer activities. For example, we collaborated with the Gingko
House to distribute “Blessing Rice” to the elderly in the community,
and ordered low-sugar mooncakes during the Mid-Autumn Festival
to support elderly employment and to give away blessing bags. In
addition, the Group also collaborated with non-profit organisations
such as Urban Peacemaker and St. James’ Settlement to deliver
festive blessings to the grassroots elderly, visited the elderly living
alone, participated in the Mid-Autumn Festival social activities in
elderly centers, and visited the streets and refuse collection points
in Kwun Tong to deliver festive care to the cleaning workers.
During Christmas, the Group and St. James’ Settlement jointly
organised a celebration party, distributing Christmas blessing bags
to children from grassroots families and sharing the festival joy.

The Group encourages employees to achieve a balance between
work and life. To allow employees to relax both physically
and mentally amidst their busy work, we arranged static DIY
workshops for activities such as cloth bag painting, aroma stone
making, moon lamp production and Pastel Nagomi-Art, enabling
employees to experience a state of tranquility and relax their
minds. In addition, we organised a bowling competition and fun
day to foster teamwork and rapport among employees from
different departments, and invited their friends and family to share
the joyful atmosphere. This year, the Group participated in the
Fair Trade Football Charity Cup (AFE5Z BIKZEE®) again
to support fair trade and bring football enthusiasts together,
ultimately achieving an outstanding third-place finish. Moreover, we
also invited professional instructors to offer Pilates classes to help
employees stretch and relax their muscles.

202443  Annual Report 2024 011
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The Group cares about the health of our employees and
provides free influenza vaccination to our employees and their
families before the peak of influenza in winter. In addition to
providing a choice of medical centers in various districts, we also
arranged medical staff to come to the Company to vaccinate our
employees.

During the Year, the Group has participated in the Employee
Assistance Programme provided by the Employee Service
Consultancy again, to help employees in need to deal with stress
and emotional issues in their work and life. At the same time, to
enhance employees’ awareness and ability to handle emergency
incidents, the Group has proactively contacted the Fire and
Ambulance Services Academy to arrange the “Reviving Hearts (2
& Ay — Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and Automated
External Defibrillator (AED) course for employees, improving the
first aid knowledge to protect life. In addition, the Group invites
representatives from the Community Relations Department of
the Independent Commission Against Corruption to hold anti-
corruption seminars for new employees approximately once every
two months, to explain the content of the regulations and conduct
case sharings according to the nature of the industry to prevent
employees from inadvertently breaking the law.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to promote product innovation, explore
popular destinations, discover trendy attractions and cuisines
around the world, as well as introduce the latest hotels and
cruise experiences. At the same time, we will further enhance
customers’ service experiences both before and after their trips,
and encourage them to share their travel experiences. Moreover,
the Group will adhere to the customer-oriented philosophy and
continuously enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty, striving to
become the preferred travel partner of customers.

Despite the challenging business environment, | am confident that
with the Group’s good corporate image, the support from our
customers and business partners, and the collective efforts and
dedicated services of our staff, the performance will continue to
improve steadily in the future. | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers, business partners, the
management team and all staff.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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GROUP OVERVIEW

In 2024, the resumption of international flights and improvements
in global tourism infrastructure revitalised the tourism industry.
This recovery was accompanied by a surge in the travel market,
which the Group capitalised on by expanding its package tour
destinations. As a result, the Travel Related Business experienced
revenue growth for the Year. Also, the Group’s Hotel Business
benefited from the depreciation of the Japanese yen, which
continued to weaken throughout the Year, leading to an influx
of tourists to Japan. As such, the Group recorded satisfactory
revenue growth for the Year. However, the increase in operating
costs offset the revenue growth in the Travel Related Business,
resulting in a slight decline in overall profit.

During the Year, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,632.5 million (2023: HK$1,366.0 million),
an increase of 19.5%. Gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$373.2 million (2023: HK$339.8 million),
increase of 9.8%.

representing

representing an
However, profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$70.7 million (2023:
HK$71.7 million),
mentioned above.

representing a slight decrease of 1.3% as

Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year was HK14.08 cents (2023: HK14.26 cents),
representing a slight decrease of 1.3%.

202443  Annual Report 2024 015
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package
tours, FIT Products, ancillary travel related products and services,
sale of merchandises as well as the ownership, development and
management of hotel business.
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B E2024F K2023FE12H31HIEMEEESEH D
BHWREEFNEFUWT :

Revenue and gross profit from various business categories for
the two years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out as

follows:
2024 2023
e g5 eVl ERE 6y el ERE
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
FET FET B FET FET B
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 %
%iTE Package tours 1,430,068 227,471 159 1,176,082 229,620 19.5
BHRTERREEERIT  FIT Products and ancillary travel
TR E R AR related products and services 77,035 57,553 74.7 88,765 58,839 66.3
[EEREES Sale of merchandises 535 213 39.8 7,368 2,828 38.4
HABEEER Hotel room rental and
BB 14 AR ancillary services 139,429 87,968 63.1 111,616 48,481 43.4
i Elimination* (14,535) - - (17,811) - =
1@t Total 1,632,532 373,205 22.9 1,366,020 339,768 24.9

Y RIIEEEE R ZRE DAL W

JEITH

RITEWR@mEERBRIBERITES P RROEE 1
FEE > ZERERRBRIOEMES T EBHIE
RETISHFEE R Rt ZEBRTEEZFOUK
mRETARBHE R

KEEWZEL1,430,100,0008 75 (20234
1,176,100,000% 70) @ 18 #21.6% R B A EE
W A8 3E87.6% (20234 1 86.1%) <A > EF A
227,500,000/ 7T ( 20234 : 229,600,0007% 7T) » /&
#0.9% > TEZHIKAAIGM

*

Elimination refers to inter-segment revenue of hotel business.

FPACKAGE TOURS

Revenue from package tours primarily comprises tour fees
received from customers for outbound package tours. During the
Year, an increasing demand for diverse travel experiences has
driven prolonged growth in Hong Kong’s outbound travel market.
As a result, the Group’s revenue from package tour business
recorded satisfactory growth.

Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$1,430.1
million (2023: HK$1,176.1 million), representing an increase
of 21.6% and contributing 87.6% to the Group’s total revenue
(2023: 86.1%). However, gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$227.5 million (2023: HK$229.6 million), representing a
decrease of 0.9%, primarily due to increase in cost.
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A FE I £9500,000748 75 (20234 © 7,400,000
70) P RIBA92.7% R B A E B W 42 EE0.0% (2023
£ 10.5%) o EFAI200,0007 75 (20234 : 2,800,000
HBIT) 0 BB A92.5% °

RAFE GEEHMBREDBHRSHEM
MEECHAIRERBES -
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FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly comprises income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, local tours in overseas, transportation rental
services and commission income from travel insurance services.

The intense market competitions caused the revenue from FIT
Products and ancillary travel related products and services to
decrease by 13.2% from approximately HK$88.8 million in 2023
to approximately HK$77.0 million in 2024, contributing 4.7% to
the Group’s total revenue (2023: 6.5%). Gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$57.6 million (2023: HK$58.8 million),
representing a decrease of 2.2%.

SALE OF MERCHANDISES

At the end of October 2023, the Group executed a strategic
decision to shut down all physical retail shops of “EGL Market”.
This move allowed the Group to consolidate its resources and
refocus on its core segments: Travel Related Business and Hotel
Business.

Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million
(2023: HK$7.4 million), representing a decrease of 92.7% and
contributing 0.0% to the Group’s total revenue (2023: 0.5%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million (2023:
HK$2.8 million), representing a decrease of 92.5%.

During the Year, the results of this segment was grouped into
Travel Related Business for the purpose of segment reporting in
the consolidated financial statements.

HOTEL ROOM RENTAL AND ANCILLARY SERVICES

The Hotel Business benefited from the depreciation of the
Japanese yen, which continued to weaken throughout the Year,
leading to an influx of tourists to Japan. The occupancy rates of
the Group’s hotels therefore increased and the Hotel Business
recorded satisfactory results and growth for the Year.

Osaka Hinode Hotel, the Group’s first hotel, commenced its
operation since November 2017. It provides quality hospitality
services for guests from all over the world and has a capacity of
354 rooms for 691 guests with a hot spring bath building adjacent
to it. The hotel’s average occupancy rate for the Year was 84.9%
(2023: 80.0%).
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KEBEC *Er‘ Dh@eoF BRERBEI R
2020F 12 EE AR K AIREEENAEIER
B BIEANB201 R BB MI80REFF  LHFHEF
INB R Bk E R o BIE AN FEFHAEEAR2.0%
(20234 : 75.5%) ©

BEEENRBE T EOEHERERERFESEN
uézi\ozmrgu&mmsg 400,000 7t (2023%F :
111,600,000/ 7T) » A 18#424.9% © #ib& VR B 2 3F A
ZWE%Z RBINEEE ZUWE4124,900,000%8 7T
(20234 : 93,800,000/8 7t) BRI AE BN R 4258
7.7% (20234 : 6.9%) ° EF)4988,000,0007E 7T (2023
£F : 48,500,000/ 7T) > FH1E8A81.4%°

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, the Group’s second
hotel, commenced its operation since December 2020. It provides
quality hospitality services for guests from all over the world and
has a capacity of 201 rooms for 480 guests with the facilities
ranging from outdoor hot spring to swimming pool. The hotel’s
average occupancy rate for the Year was 92.0% (2023: 75.5%).

Revenue from hotel operation mainly comprises income generated
from the letting of hotel rooms. The revenue for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$139.4 million (2023: HK$111.6 million),
representing an increase of 24.9%. Revenue from external
customers, which was net of inter-segment revenue, amounted
to approximately HK$124.9 million (2023: HK$93.8 million) and
contributing 7.7% to the Group’s total revenue (2023: 6.9%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$88.0 million (2023:
HK$48.5 million), representing an increase of 81.4%.

BAF5 (ol R FINANCIAL REVIEW
BRI KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2024 2023
EFE Gross profit margin 22.9% 24.9%
G F] O Operating profit margin 6.4% 8.4%
ey | Net profit margin @ 4.3% 5.2%
FEBEZRO Interest coverage ratio () 8.3 & times 4.9 fZ times
485 E O ER X Return on total assets @ 9.3% 8.3%
KRBVEB A Return on equity attributable to
FE(LHE ma O] R X owners of the Company @ 72.2% 151.1%
TRENEEE Current ratio 0.8 fZ time 1.0 fZ time
FERE=R Gearing ratio
HERRUEEE Total borrowings over total assets 47.2% 57.8%
R EBRUKG RS Net debts over equity 243.1% 684.0%
O BRI ETE _FISFE A AN R BB AT B Al o M Profit in calculation refers to the profit before finance costs and
taxation.
@ BRI EHE _FIEAR LGB N LT o @ Profit in calculation refers to the profit attributable to owners of the
Company.
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview” above.

SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline staff costs contributed the majority of selling expenses of
the Group. Selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$91.3
million (2023: HK$70.0 million), representing an increase of 30.4%.
Such increase was primarily attributed to the increase in staff costs
arising from hiring additional frontline staff to handle the growth in
package tours and the new brick and mortar branches opened in
the second half of 2023.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, rent, rates and
management fee and depreciation on property, plant and
equipment contributed the majority of administrative expenses of
the Group. Administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$175.9 million (2023: HK$159.4 million), representing an
increase of 10.3%. Such increase was attributed primarily to
higher staff costs resulting from the factors mentioned above.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs of approximately HK$3.4 million (2023: HK$3.6
million) was incurred for the Year on the bank borrowings which
were used to finance the construction and decoration of hotel
buildings and hot spring bath building, acquisition of travel buses
and daily operations of Travel Related Business.

Based on discounted cash flows of the loans from a related
company, Great Port, finance costs of approximately HK$7.8
million (2023: HK$18.0 million) were incurred for the Year. The
decrease in finance costs was attributed to series of early
repayments of these loans which commenced in 2023.

Finance costs on the lease liabilities of the Group of approximately
HK$1.4 million (2023: HK$1.4 million) were incurred for the Year in
accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$21.0 million (2023: HK$19.6 million). The increase was mainly
due to higher assessable profits from Japan for the Year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2023: Nil).

On 20 January 2025, the Board declared a special dividend of
HK6 cents per share totalling HK$30,147,000. The dividends have
been distributed on 26 March 2025.

On 14 December 2023, the Board declared a special dividend of
HK7 cents per share totalling HK$35,172,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023. The dividends have been distributed on 18
January 2024.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio for the Year was 8.3 times (2023: 4.9
times). The increase was mainly contributed by the decrease in
finance costs incurred on loans from a related company after
series of early repayments.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

For the changes in gross profit margin, operating profit margin
and net profit margin, please refer to the factors already discussed
above.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current ratio was 0.8 time
(as at 31 December 2023: 1.0 time). The decrease in current ratio
was mainly attributable to the decrease in cash at bank and on
hand of approximately HK$50.7 million and the increase in current
portion of bank borrowings of approximately HK$30.0 million.
The change in bank borrowings is resulted from revisions of the
repayment schedule of the bank loans in relation to Osaka Hinode
Hotel and hot spring bath building.
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iErELEE GEARING RATIO
@m,” el
Increase/
2024 2023 (Decrease)
FAET FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR EEE — 4 E™R Gearing ratio - Total borrowings
PRI EE over total assets
RITER Bank borrowings 269,470 313,009 (43,539)
RIBE AR BN Loans from a related company 90,544 182,741 (92,197)
e (Mata) Total borrowings (note a) 360,014 495,750 (135,736)
MEE Total assets 762,726 858,241 (95,515)
BB Gearing ratio 47.2% 57.8% (10.6)
BEDRL
percentage
points
ERIEER—FER Gearing ratio - Net debts
PRUABG BRI over equity
e (Wata) Total borrowings (note a) 360,014 495,750 (135,736)
HESE Lease liabilities 47,507 48,465 (958)
WET (Matb) Total debts (note b) 407,521 544,215 (136,694)
BRI EAREFRE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (169,242) (219,940) 50,698
238,279 324,275 (85,996)
MR s (Fate) Equity (note ¢) 98,034 47,408 50,626
BERREE Gearing ratio 243.1% 684.0% (440.9)
(EEpa
percentage
points
BiaE - Notes:
(a) MEREERITERKBEATER (a) Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a
related company.
(b) MEFEERTER BHELADERKEEARA (b) Total debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities.
(©) REEGREEARNBEE ANEBETEE R fEE- (©) Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.
022 =R ARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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The decrease in gearing ratio — total borrowings over total assets
was due to the decrease in total borrowings resulting from early
repayments of loans from a related company, Great Port, and the
installment repayments of bank borrowings, offset by the decrease
in total assets.

The decrease in gearing ratio — net debts over equity was mainly
attributable to the decrease in total debts mentioned above and
the increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company
generated from profit for the Year.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company for the Year were 9.3% (2023: 8.3%) and 72.2%
(2023: 151.1%) respectively.

The increase in return on total assets was mainly due to the
decrease in property, plant and equipment and cash at banks and
on hand.

The decrease in return on equity was mainly due to the increase in
the equity attributable to owners of the Company generated from
profit for the Year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Regarding the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed in
October 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at
31 December 2024 amounted to approximately JPY2,242.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$110.4 million) (as at 31 December
2023: JPY2,663.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$146.0
million)). The repayment term is payable in 12 years.

For the construction of hot spring bath building in Osaka which
was completed in March 2019, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately
JPY365.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$18.0 million)
(as at 31 December 2023: JPY422.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$23.2 million)). The repayment term is payable in
12 years.
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With respect to the construction of Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot
Spring Hotel completed in October 2020, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2024 amounted to
approximately JPY2,458.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$121.1 million) (as at 31 December 2023: JPY2,572.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$141.0 million)). The repayment
term is payable in 26 years.

With regard to the acquisition of five travel buses in 2017,
the bank borrowings were fully repaid during the Year and no
outstanding balance remained as at 31 December 2024 (as at
31 December 2023: JPY50.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2.8 million)).

In respect of the bank borrowings withdrawn in Hong Kong to
meet the needs of working capital for Travel Related Business
operation, the carrying amount as at 31 December 2024
amounted to HK$20.0 million (as at 31 December 2023: Nil). The
repayment term is payable within 30 days.

Regarding the loans from a related company, Great Port, the
Group made early repayments of a total principal amount of
HK$105.0 million during the Year. The carrying amount of the
outstanding loans amounted to approximately HK$90.5 million
as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: HK$182.7
million). All these loans are unsecured and repayable on 1 January
2026.

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately
HK$98.0 million (as at 31 December 2023: HK$47.4 million). As
at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash at banks and on hand
amounted to approximately HK$169.2 million (as at 31 December
2023: HK$219.9 million). Cash at banks and on hand were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar accounting for approximately
41.4% (as at 31 December 2023: 62.1%), Japanese Yen
accounting for approximately 32.0% (as at 31 December 2023:
20.1%), Renminbi accounting for approximately 8.5% (as at
31 December 2023: 5.3%) and Macau Pataca accounting for
approximately 7.6% (as at 31 December 2023: 8.4%).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, property, plant and equipment of
Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, Osaka Hinode Hotel
together with the hot spring bath building and certain pledged
bank balances in Japan of approximately HK$354.3 million in total
(as at 31 December 2023: HK$399.4 million including travel buses)
were pledged for the bank borrowings in Japan as mentioned in
the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Financial Review — Capital Structure, Liquidity and Finance
Resources”.

Also, as at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$10.3 million (as at 31 December
2023: HK$10.2 million). Excluding those pledged bank balances
in Japan mentioned above, majority of the pledged bank deposits
were pledged to certain licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau
to secure the bank borrowings withdrawn in Hong Kong and
letters of guarantees issued to certain third parties on behalf of
the Group. Together with corporate guarantee provided by the
Company and undertakings provided by the certain executive
Directors to maintain the control over the management and
business of the Group, the Group’s total guarantees amounted
to approximately HK$10.0 million (as at 31 December 2023:
HK$10.4 million), which were mainly issued to the Group’s branch
shop landlords and suppliers, such as air transport association,
airlines and hotels in order to guarantee the Group’s trade payable
balances due to the suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on
assets as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$4.9 million (as at 31 December 2023: HK$0.9
million) to acquire property, plant and equipment for its Travel
Related Business.

The Group currently intends to finance future capital expenditures
by utilising internal resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: Nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group subscribed
for a 40% equity interest in Nissay Shoji (HK) Company Limited
(“Nissay”) by a cash consideration of HK$0.4 million. Nissay’s
primary businesses are (a) importing, wholesaling and retailing of
food, personal care and beauty products; and (b) food processing.
In addition, the Group advanced interest-bearing loans of HK$0.8
million to Nissay. The Group initially expected that the investment
in Nissay would facilitate the business of EGL Market, but as the
Group scaled down the sale of merchandises business segment in
October 2023 mentioned above, the initial reason for acquiring the
investment is no longer relevant. Also, the operation result did not
perform as expected. The Group fully wrote off the investment and
the loans. Save as disclosed above, there was no other material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant investment held by the
Group (2023: Nil).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s
previous floating to fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank
in Japan to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk and cash
flow changes of its floating-rate bank borrowings was matured.
Other than the aforesaid swap contract, the Group did not rely
on hedging arrangements. The Group had implemented foreign
exchange risk management procedures to closely monitor the
risk exposure. The procedures were established to prevent
carrying excessive cash balance in foreign currencies, of which
the purchase amounts were limited to the corresponding costs of
travel elements based on estimated sales amount for one week,
to cover the foreign exchange risk exposure in connection. The
objective of our foreign exchange risk management procedures
is to cover the foreign exchange risk exposure in connection with
those costs of travel elements denominated in foreign currencies
to be incurred for one week. The procedures do not allow us
to exercise any judgement over the future direction of foreign
exchange fluctuation and are strict procedural steps for our
operational staff to follow. The Group will review the procedures
from time to time and make appropriate changes when necessary.
Other than the transactional foreign currency exchange risk, assets
and liabilities of the group entities are mainly denominated in its
respective functional currency. The Group’s treasury management
policy is to place surplus cash into bank deposits with licensed
pbanks in mainly Hong Kong, Macau and Japan. Also, working
capital are centrally managed to ensure proper and efficient
collection and deployment of funds, and sufficient funds to settle
liabilities when they fall due. Net exchange loss of approximately
HK$3.1 million was recorded for the Year (2023: HK$1.8 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total workforce of 447
employees (as at 31 December 2023: 419), of which 144 (as at
31 December 2023: 123) were full-time tour leaders and escort
guides. Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with
reference to the market information and individual performance
and will be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy
will be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. High potential staff will be groomed
and developed intensively according to the promotion plan
towards the management level. To attract and retain the best
quality personnel for the Group’s business development, a new
share option scheme has been adopted on 31 May 2024 (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) for the replacement of the share
option scheme adopted on 13 November 2014 (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme,
share options may be granted to eligible employees and give
them incentives to contribute to the Group’s continued growth
and success, and to promote the long term financial success of
the Group by aligning their interests to the ones of shareholders.
During the Year, no share options were granted, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the Old Share Option Scheme and/or
the New Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted
in preceding years under the Old Share Option Scheme. Save
as disclosed above, there was no significant change in the
remuneration policies, bonus, share option scheme and training
scheme of the Group during the Year (2023: Nil).
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OUR STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

The Group anticipates sustained growth in demand for outbound
travel to Japan in 2025. Coinciding with the Osaka-Kansai Expo
scheduled to take place in Osaka from April to October, the
event is expected to attract millions of visitors, necessitating
a substantial increase in accommodation capacity. The Group
believes that its Osaka Hinode Hotel will significantly benefit from
this influx of visitors. Furthermore, as one of the official overseas
ticket sales agents for the Osaka-Kansai Expo, the Group will
have the opportunity to generate a new revenue stream in 2025,
complementing its Hotel Business.

Efforts have been made to maintain the flexibility of the Group’s
tour schedules and ensure flight availability. The Group will
continue to arrange charter flights and cruises as part of its sales
facilitation and brand enhancement strategy.

Apart from the Group’s expertise in Japan tours, the Group has
been expanding its high-quality special package tours and FIT
packages internationally to meet the ever-evolving demands of
customers. With popular travel destinations in China among Hong
Kong residents, the Group is enhancing its travel offerings in these
regions. To maintain its competitive edge, the Group organised 3
charter cruises in 2024 and plans to arrange 9 additional cruises in
2025.
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To enhance brand awareness and improve the customer
experience, a wide range of promotional activities will be
implemented by leveraging social media platforms and digital
channels. Various trending products will also be promoted to
maintain brand exposure and competitiveness. The Group has
Bk
##” aimed at customer retention, customer base expansion and

recently launched a customer loyalty programme “E2i& %%

ultimately driving business growth. By continuously adapting and
refining its strategies, the Group remains responsive to market
trends and customer expectations, ensuring long-term success.

Currently, the Group operates 8 branches in Hong Kong and 1
branch in Macau. To enhance customer outreach, the Group will
continue to explore opportunities for expanding and restructuring
its branch network.

In light of the financial performance for the Year and the previous
year, the Group anticipates having sufficient working capital readily
available for its future operations. Nevertheless, it will remain
cautious regarding its cash position. Any cash surplus from
working capital requirements will be utilised to reduce the Group’s
gearing. Additionally, the Group will explore alternative sources of

income to strengthen its financial position.

The Group is strategically positioned in the market to deliver high-
quality services and products. It expresses confidence in Hong
Kong’s economy and is committed to regaining momentum while
gradually strengthening its operations. With a dedicated team
of professionals and effective management, the Group is well-
equipped to navigate the challenges ahead, maintain its leading
market position, and create long-term value for Shareholders,

customers, and business partners.
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HE12B3MNALLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
TAT TAT TET TAT TAT
e Results HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
W Revenue
ikl Package tours 1,430,068 1,176,082 109,530 7,734 218,084
BHTERREMERT FIT Products and ancillary travel
TR E R AR related products and services 77,035 88,765 19,691 5,234 17,096
EEREEES Sale of merchandises 535 7,368 20,936 17,504 7,418
HIAE R B R a1 iR Hotel room rental and ancillary services 139,429 111,616 47,853 14,106 9,406
= Elimination®) (14,535) (17,811) (1,531) - (3,133)
1,632,532 1,366,020 196,479 44,578 249,771
E£7,/ (8) Gross profit/(loss)
RiTE Package tours 227,471 229,620 28,863 1,549 13,583
BHRTERREMERT FIT Products and ancillary travel
FERE E K R related products and services 57,553 58,839 8,951 3,386 10,341
EEREEES Sale of merchandises 213 2,828 6,215 3,973 1,541
HIEBER BRI R Hotel room rental and ancillary services 87,968 48,481 (5,148) (38,085) (38,260)
373,205 339,768 38,881 (29,177) (12,795)
HMWA -~ RE R B 1835 Other income, gains and losses, net (4,314) 2,150 30,418 11,313 14,452
i3 =N Share of results of associates 3,226 2,193 (238) (513) (1,053)
HitS A% Other operating expenses (147) (55) (818) (33,452) (1,277)
BB A A K P31 Al Profit/(Loss) before finance costs and
wl/ (§518) income tax 104,782 114,603 (69,538) (184,479) (142,607
RREM A Finance costs (12,688) (23,183) (22,658) (14,854) (6,992)
Fifsin (%) /% Income tax (expense)/credit (20,999) (19,586) 16,697 42,908 39,925
FERA/ (58) Profit/(Loss) for the year 71,095 71,834 (75,499) (156,425) (109,674)
FERESR (Profit)/Loss attributable to
FEh (8 7) /518 non-controlling interests (351) [77) 1,200 790 914
V/NGIEZZ= DN Profit/(Loss) attributable to
FEftiaF/ (8518) owners of the Company 70,744 71,657 (74,299) (155,635) (108,760)
SREE Per share data
SRR/ (B518) Earnings/(Loss) per share
—EAREE (B) - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 14.08 14.26 (14.79) (30.98) (21.65)
BIFLE= Financial ratios
EFE Gross profit margin 22.9% 24.9% 19.8% -65.5% -5.1%
REFIEEE Operating profit margin® 6.4% 8.4% -35.4% -413.8% -57.1%
el Net profit margin® 4.3% 5.2% -37.8% -349.1% -43.5%
HEBEXY Interest coverage ratio® 8.3f3times  4.9fftmes  -3.1fBtimes -12.4fBtimes -20.4fZtimes
48 E DR X Return on total assets® 9.3% 8.3% -8.2% -17.2% -10.3%
a0l =0 Return on equity® 72.2% 151.1% -321.7% -125.6% -43.1%
RENL = Current ratio 0.8fZtime 1.0fZtime 0.71Btime 0.61&time 0.71Ztime
B = Gearing ratio
—REHBRUAEEY — Total borrowings over total assets® 47.2% 57.8% 75.1% 76.6% 64.2%
—FEBRURREL — Net debts over equity® 243.1% 684.0% 2,234.2% 493.0% 252.3%

032 H=FiERARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Elimination refers to inter-segment revenue of hotel business.

Operating profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss before

finance costs and taxation.

Profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

Gearing ratio:

Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a
related company

- Net debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities less cash at banks and on hand

- Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company

Details of dividends attributable to owners of the Company for the

years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
FET FEx FET FEx FExT
BEKRAR Assets and Liabilities HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
BEE Total assets 762,726 858,241 905,056 905,115 1,053,511
ey =F Total liabilities (666,392)  (813,006)  (884,587)  (782,821)  (801,878)
T 4% Total equity 96,334 45,145 20,469 122,294 251,633
HABEEN Bank borrowings included in
RITER total liabilities (269,470)  (313,009)  (365,366)  (420,118)  (476,796)
BEABER Loans from a related company (90,544)  (182,741)  (313,918)  (272,874)  (200,000)
R EEE Total equity
KRBEB A Equity attributable to
FE1GHE R owners of the Company 98,034 47,408 23,095 123,897 252,583
TR ER Non-controlling interests (1,700) (2,263) (2,626) (1,608) (950)
96,334 45,145 20,469 122,294 251,633
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$110.2 million (2023: HK$110.2
million).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 205 of this
annual report. On 20 January 2025, the Board declared a special
dividend of 6 Hong Kong cents per Share (14 December 2023:
special dividend of 7 Hong Kong cents per Share). The special
dividend has been paid on 26 March 2025 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on 11 February 2025. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of final dividend for the Year (2023:
HKS$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 13 and the
sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview” on pages 16 to 19 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Our Strategies and Outlook” on pages
29 to 30 of this annual report respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may

affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

(i)

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations may be materially and adversely
affected by natural disasters, acts or threats of terrorism,
wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of contagious
diseases or other catastrophic events. Such events may
significantly and adversely affect customer sentiments and
demand for travel related products, services and hotel
accommodations to the affected destinations or for travel
activities in general. The occurrence and timing of such
events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group and
may have significant and adverse impact on its assets,
business operations and operating results, particularly if the
Group is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately in
the wake of any such event.
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(1)

(ii)

(v)

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or Macau
could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s products or
services and its overall business and operating results may
be materially and adversely affected.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAFAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in Japan,
which may adversely impact customer demand for travel
related products and services of the Group related to Japan
and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAPAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel and Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel, which are located in Osaka and
Okinawa respectively, might face competition from other
accommodation options in Japan currently existing or which
may come into operation in the future. The success of the
Group’s hotels operation will depend on its ability to compete
in aspects such as room rates, quality of accommodation,
service level and convenience of location.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks
facing by the Group are set out in note 36 and note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively and the sub-section

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency

Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 27 of this annual

report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 31 to 34 and the sub-section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review”
on pages 19 to 28 of this annual report respectively. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the above sections
of this annual report and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 to the Listing
Rules to be published at the same time as this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for
rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
31 to 34 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIST OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2024, details of the properties owned by the
Group are as follows:

R4 2 BaBEE
i YESi amE [}
B8 & EEaRL AIREER (EHK) (EFHK) RERR
Approximate Approximate
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in Available Site Area Area Existing
Name Location the Property Rooms (sg.m.) (sq.m.) Use
RIREOF BIE BARKRA KRS 100% 354 1,602.07 9,883.83 S
REEEXEA—TH
%13/ 2%S3
Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-13 and 2-33, Hotel
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
BOFREKRER BAKRRFART 100% 16 266.01 1,008.33 BRA
REEEZERA—TH
2E31 K2ES3?2
Hinode Deep-water Hot Spring 2-31 and 2-32, Hot spring bath
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
HEROF RRERBIE BAHEBET 100% 201 2,327.89 6,296.21 BIE
WE=TH

Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel

348-1+ 346~ 350/%353-6
348-1, 346, 350 and 353-6,

3-Chome, Makishi,

Naha City, Okinawa, Japan

Hotel

[EES

AT 2 RAH A A (B -

BE - LENBEIA AT Z EHES

REEE  ZATDREFAMNBATHMERES - HE
FELOAQNTEMLHES (BEEALEEER
7)o FR2024FE128310  ARAT M EFEEMER

B&An o
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SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities (including any sale of treasury shares). As at
31 December 2024, the Company did not hold any treasury
shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million (2023: HK$27,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

LA EE
KaIREEER
BMAEDH
Approximate
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
BRAHER The largest supplier 13.0%
hAREEEEH Five largest suppliers in aggregate 27.7%

MEZAA BEEF HEEMBEANTARES
FRANEB A RB EEITRAS DU LZRET  RAFE
BEAERETAIRE R NHERNEAEE

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai

Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick (appointed on 31 May 2024)
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (retired on 31 May 2024)

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and
Mr. Chan Kim Fai will retire by rotation at the 2025 AGM and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 80 to
84 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2025 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

() LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFANY

(R VNG
FAEERATH BETRE
RO#BE R HBER BHYBES

Approximate %

Number of Shares of the Issued

Held in

Share Capital

Name of Director Capacity the Company Total Interests of the Company
mXHEZE (TREE)) BmEBA 840,000 1,496,000 0.30%
Mr. Yuen Man Ying Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Yuen”) BRI #ER 656,000
Interest of spouse (BtzE1) (Note 1)
BE2EE (%L BmEBA 500,000 17,228,000 3.43%
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Huen”) REREGEENER 16,728,000
Interest of a controlled (Ht522) (Note 2)
corporation
R E (MREED) BEREBA 7,216,000 7,216,000 1.44%
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Leung”)
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Number of Shares
Held in

EARRE
EEITRAE
BB

Approximate %
of the Issued
Share Capital

Name of Director Capacity the Company Total Interests of the Company
FESFL (FEg+)) Bm#EEA 656,000 1,496,000 0.30%
Ms. Lee Po Fun Beneficial owner
(‘Ms. Lee") BRI S 840,000
Interest of spouse (#1z#3) (Note 3)
BEELE Bm#EEA 6,000 6,000 0.00%

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

Beneficial owner

mfat -

M

REEAZTR I ZEREB WRBESRIPER
BEXVE  HRBAREL TR EREEZ
656,000/ & 1D R B fEm ©

i

Bl (REELEEEEERE)$516,728,0008
Be

=z
X2
)

EutTAREEZRB BWREEHEMBER
BEXVE  HRBARREEFREREEZ
840,000/ f& 17 P #E R 2 ©

Notes:

(M Mr. Yuen was deemed to be interested in 656,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Ms. Lee by virtue of his being the

spouse of Ms. Lee for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

(2)  The 16,728,000 Shares were held by Kwok Lai, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Huen directly.

3) Ms. Lee was deemed to be interested in 840,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Mr. Yuen by virtue of her being the

spouse of Mr. Yuen for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.
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() LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

HAEEEERE A EE R w

EEHL HECEE SR g9 %17 42 84 BN E D

Total Number of Approximate %

Name of Shares Held in of Interest in

Associated the Associated the Associated

Name of Director Corporation Capacity Corporation Corporation

REHE IREEE HIEEFEMIIA 5,850 17.65%
Mr. Yuen Evergloss Founder of a discretionary trust (Bit5#1) (Note 1)

|k IREEE R2EHEBENER 7,650 23.08%
Mr. Huen Evergloss Interest of a controlled corporation (Bt522) (Note 2)

RuHE IREEE BaEBA 3,000 9.05%

Mr. Leung Evergloss Beneficial owner

Exodan EEEE MNEEEZZmARERERA 8,550 25.79%

Ms. Lee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (B1523) (Note 3)
& beneficial owner

mEEZT BEEE MBEGEHEZXBANREBRER A 7,950 23.98%

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (1zt4) (Note 4)

& beneficial owner
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F| B2 (FAlpadis Trust (HK) Limited® & #45) 555,850
R e B IR G {5 » Alpadis Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen
Family 2014 Trustf9=Z5E A > MThe Yuen Family 2014
TrustBREEUEEFFEL T REFRBBRZ LT (9
BREENHEN) B2HBEZEARINBNIBET-

IR (B EERE2EER) FA7 660RIEEEER

e

8,550 BB > B (Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limitedz 2 &K B A7) 55,8508 1% » Alpadis
Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustfy3 5
AN BELTAZEAZTHAZ— R 2,700 BEE
ERMAHFTFLTEFAERBRBEATE

7,950 B KM > F & (Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limitedz 2 &K B A7) 55,8508 1% » Alpadis
Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustfy3 5
AN RBELZTAZELZTEAZ— 88 72,1008 12
BEERCHREBLTFASRHEEATE

bR ECFRIREE SN 122024F12831H  BIEE S
ERBERBTHRABRARBHEEMBEEZR (€
ERFBHRAGHRAEXVER) Z k7~ BrIR G HE
REBETNEAEADRERSF MM ERPIBIG2FAT
BEZELMALE ARBRETHEANEGRAT
Rl 2P Z AR AT i Bl A o

Notes:

1. The 5,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, which is wholly-
owned by Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited being the trustee of The Yuen
Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen
whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee,
wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of
Mr. Yuen.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Huen directly.

3. Out of the 8,550 shares in Evergloss, 5,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
which is the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is
one of the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 2,700 shares in
Evergloss were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

4. Out of the 7,950 shares in Evergloss, 5,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
which is the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Yuen Ho Yee
is one of the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 2,100 shares in
Evergloss were held by Ms. Yuen Ho Yee as the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of

RAERERGZIFE

R,

Name of Shareholder

the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFANY

59

Capacity

SE RN
Bfp B

Total Number of
Shares Held
in the Company

(SR VNE
BEITRE
a2

Approximate %
of the Issued
Share Capital

of the Company

1R E 18
Evergloss

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited

Alpadis Group Holding AG

Alain ESSEIVAZt &
Mr. Alain ESSEIVA

Vanessa Teo ESSEIVAZ +
Ms. Vanessa Teo ESSEIVA

BmEA A

Beneficial owner

ZEEA
Trustee

2 EGE BB R
Interest of a controlled corporation

2 EGE BB R
Interest of a controlled corporation

BB R
Interest of spouse

301,642,000

320,994,000

(#152) (Note)

320,994,000
(Hiaz) (Note)

320,994,000
(Hiaz) (Note)

320,994,000
(Hiaz) (Note)

60.03%

63.88%

63.88%

63.88%

63.88%
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BiaF (5% %5320,994, 000 RN EBIEHBEEEEREZ
301,642,0008% B 15 K F] FE#5 A 2 19,352,0008% B& 17 ©
R2024F 128318 BEBIERFIEESN17.65%°
F|EEHAlpadis Trust (HK) LimitedZ2 & #%A > Alpadis
Trust (HK) Limited&MIERIEEFEHNZEE A BlThe
Yuen Family 2014 Trust’> AEL4ED IDJ‘JL/(E$¥%§
TREZBRBELZT AR TENHEN) 2HEZ
wmARILBIIEET

20245128311 » Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited#
Alpadis Group Holding AGZ 2 & KB /A B > MAlpadis
Group Holding AGHAlain ESSEIVAZC4E#HE82% © (Al
It > iR IEE 5 R HIE & B S5XVEB > Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited ~ Alpadis Group Holding AG&zAlain ESSEIVA
FE R A0320,994,0008 815 (BIFREE RS
B 2301,642,0000% & 15 K #) BB 219,352,0008%
B& 1) PR % o Vanessa Teo ESSEIVAZ = %Alain
ESSEIVAS L4 Z Fe 1B > HiF 18 A F2320,994,0008% A& 15
FRER o

& ESTFriREEE S > R2024F 128310 » fiEH h =
EREFAL EFHAARARSTEHABRIN KA
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Note: These 320,994,000 Shares consist of 301,642,000 Shares held
by Evergloss and 19,352,000 Shares held by Likang. As at
31 December 2024, Evergloss was owned as to approximately
17.65% by Likang. Likang is wholly-owned by Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited, which is the trustee of the discretionary family trust, namely
The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an
associate of Mr. Yuen.

As at 31 December 2024, Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Alpadis Group Holding AG which in turn was
owned as to 82% by Mr. Alain ESSEIVA. As such, Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited, Alpadis Group Holding AG and Mr. Alain ESSEIVA were
deemed to be interested in 320,994,000 Shares (which comprised
301,642,000 Shares held by Evergloss and 19,352,000 Shares
held by Likang) by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Ms. Vanessa Teo
ESSEIVA is a spouse of Mr. Alain ESSEIVA who has a deemed
interest of 320,994,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, there was no
other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company.
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EXus

Name of Director

NCIEZY
Name of Company

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors, other than independent
non-executive Directors, had an interest in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:

EHME

Nature of Business

Nature of Interest

EEHEL L AREE (&FH BRAT

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee Nissay Shoji (HK)

Company Limited

050 H=FiEERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Em - BAARERERERZ =
EOVHERTE
Importation, wholesaling and Director

retailing of food, personal care
and beauty products
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As the Board is independent of the board of the above mentioned
company, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of that
company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
Directors’ background, qualification, experience, duties and
responsibilities within the Group and comparing with market
conditions. The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
(excluding treasury shares, if any) is held by the public under the
Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent based on the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants

relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling

shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement

disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements

of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing

Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(i)

On 23 May 20283, EGL Tours (as borrower) and the
Company, as guarantor or security provider, accepted a
revised offer from a bank in respect of the general banking
facilities previously granted to, and accepted by, EGL Tours
in May 2018. Under the revised facility letter (the “2023
Facility Letter”), the general banking facilities including but
not limited to a revolving loan facility (the “2023 Revolving
Loan Facility”) and corporate credit card(s) (the “2023 CCD”)
in the aggregate amount of HK$35,600,000 (collectively,
the “2023 Facilities”) were granted to EGL Tours. The 2023
Revolving Loan Facility has no fixed term and is subject to
periodic review of the bank and the 2023 CCD is subject to
the terms and conditions issued by the bank’s card centre to
EGL Tours.

Under the 2023 Facility Letter, each of EGL Tours and the
Company has undertaken to the bank, among others, the
following:

(@) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman or
director(s) of EGL Tours and the Company and maintain
control over the management and business of EGL
Tours and the Company;

(b) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, not less than 45%
beneficial shareholding in EGL Tours and the Company;
and
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(c) the major operating account to be maintained in the
bank with new average bank balance of the companies
which includes EGL Tours, Great Port (being a
company controlled as to approximately 55.20% by
Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee collectively
as at the date of this report) and the Company of not
less than HK$50,000,000.

The 2023 Facilities are subject to the bank’s overriding
right of repayment on demand and the bank’s unrestricted
discretion to cancel or suspend, or determine whether or not
to permit drawings in relation to the 2023 Facilities.

On 28 February 2024, EGL Tours (as borrower) accepted
the further renewed and revised offer from a bank in respect
of the general banking facilities previously granted to,
and accepted by, EGL Tours in October 2018. Under the
renewed facility letter (the “2024 Facility Letter”), the general
banking facilities (being an invoice financing loan, bank
guarantee and a revolving loan of up to HK$45,000,000
and corporate credit card of up to HK$1,500,000) in the
aggregate amount of HK$46,500,000 (collectively, the “2024
Facilities”) were renewed. The 2024 Facility Letter was
countersigned by the Company as a guarantor or security
provider.

Under the 2024 Facility Letter, EGL Tours has undertaken to
the bank, among others, the following:

(@ any one of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
shall remain chairman or directors of EGL Tours and
maintain control over the management and business of
the group;

(b)  Mr. Yuen, Ms. Lee and their family members, Mr. Huen
and his family members, Mr. Leung and his family
members shall at all times collectively maintain, directly
or indirectly, not less than 45% beneficial shareholding
of EGL Tours; and

(c) Evergloss shall at all times maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 51% beneficial shareholding in
the Company.

Pursuant to the 2024 Facility Letter, the bank has the
overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2024 Facilities.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted its previous share option scheme
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on
13 November 2014 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) which was
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of listing
of the shares of the Company (i.e. 28 November 2014), subject to
early termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The total number of Shares available for issue under the
Old Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2024 was 50,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share
capital of the Company. There is no service provider sublimit under
the Old Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
31 May 2024 (the “2024 AGM”), the Company terminated the Old
Share Option Scheme. Since the adoption of the Old Share Option
Scheme until the date of 2024 AGM, no option was granted by
the Company under the Old Share Option Scheme. The Old Share
Option Scheme was terminated, and hence, there were no options
available for grant under the Old Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2024. The total number of Shares available for issue
under the Old Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2024
was O Share, representing 0% of the issued share capital of the
Company (excluding treasury shares, if any) as at 31 December
2024 and the date of this report.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Shareholders at the 2024 AGM (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
4 June 2024, subject to early termination by the Company in a
general meeting or by the Board. The purpose of the New Share
Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality personnel
for the development of the Group’s businesses, to motivate
Eligible Participants (as defined below) and give them incentive to
contribute to the Group’s continued growth and success, and to
promote the long-term financial success of the Group by aligning
the interests of grantees with Shareholders. Under the New Share
Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option to any
director and employee of the Group, or any director or employee
of the Company’s holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and
associated companies, or any service provider participants (the
“Eligible Participants”) in accordance with the rules of the New
Share Option Scheme. The remuneration committee of the Board
shall review and/or approve the matters relating to the New Share
Option Scheme.
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The maximum number of Shares that may be issued under the
New Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 50,245,000 Shares,
being 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued
under the service provider sublimit upon exercise of the options
under the New Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 5,024,500
Shares, being 1% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
date of adoption.

The Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day within
a period of 10 years from 4 June 2024 to grant an option to an
Eligible Participant as the Board may in its absolute discretion
select. The vesting period of any particular option shall not be less
than 12 months. The exercise period shall be specified in the offer
letter but no offer shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of
10 years from 4 June 2024. An offer of the grant of an option shall
be deemed to have been accepted when the Company receives
a duplicate offer letter duly signed from the grantee together
with a remittance of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any
currency as the Board may determine) in favour of the Company
as consideration for the grant thereof.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option (subject to
any adjustment in accordance with the rules of the New Share
Option Scheme) shall be a price determined by the Board and
stated in the offer letter, and shall be at least the higher of: (a)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer; (b) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2024 under the Old Share
Option Scheme and/or the New Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme and the service provider sublimit of the New Share Option
Scheme were 50,245,000 Shares (representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any))
and 5,024,500 Shares (representing 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any)) respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions entered into by, and/or
subsisted between, the Group and the connected persons of the
Company during the Year and which are not exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) 2024 TENANCY AGREEMENTS

Each of (i) the five tenancy agreements all dated
25 November 2022 entered into between the Group (as
tenant) and Great Port (as landlord) in relation to the
granting of tenancies to the Group for the use of certain
premises, car park spaces and advertising areas; and (i)
the tenancy agreement dated 26 June 2023 and entered
into between Great Port (as landlord) and EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited (“EGL Tours (Macau)”) (as tenant)
in relation to the tenancy of the premises of the Macau
branch office of the Group, which re-opened in July 2023,
expired on 31 December 2023. On 24 November 2023, the
Group entered into the following six tenancy agreements
(collectively, the “2024 Tenancy Agreements”) with Great
Port to renew the former tenancies, each with a term
commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(both days inclusive):
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1HBI2024 F R E RS9 BaLgRER B#  E#
Parties to the relevant Approximate Monthly
2024 Tenancy Agreements Gross Floor Area Rental Use
g% ¥ R bES (EHR)
No.  Landlord Tenant Premises (sq. ft.)
1, RET BRI BEN A EEES3R R R RS 10EARCE 45,816 608,000 A EEfR
12B2E 15182 162  218P15 (FEEFE HERARAE
PISEPBHEEALEHE RIZHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car HK$658,000  Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, parking spaces spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to and signage of signage areas for
P23 on 2/F and Signage Areas, areas) advertising
EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
2. KRBT BRBIRTH BENEBEESREEER0#BE 2,300 32,0008 EH
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, HK$32,000  Head office
Kowloon, Hong Kong
3. RET RRERTH BENERRBHE-H1RETAESE 234 5,531 1020008 ATHERR/
5R6E ASWEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier Housg, HK$102,000  Branch office and/or
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong multi-function room
Kong
4, RET RRERTH BENRERREES-51RE T AE5EAE 835 1500080  AITHER
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 HK$15,000  Branch office
Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
5. RET RRERTH (BFY)  EPIANZME A EK2-6B5 &% A B H730-804%% 3,460 388008MT  EFIMERR
10BME BHEBEETL
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP38,800  Macau office and call
Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau centre
6. RET BRERTH (BFY)  BFIABMEASRK-6B5EE A S H730-804% 1,159 580008MmL  RMINTHER
WTBES
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) ~ Shop B, G/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP58,500  Macau branch office

Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau
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As at the date of the 2024 Tenancy Agreements, Great
Port is a majority-controlled company owned by Mr. Yuen
as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to approximately
23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.95% and Ms. Lee
as to approximately 0.90%, all being the executive Directors.
The above-mentioned executive Directors together controlled
approximately 60.63% voting power of Great Port, and
therefore Great Port is an associate of the said executive
Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2024 Tenancy Agreements
constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under the Listing
Rules, but are exempt from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. Details of the 2024
Tenancy Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 November 2023.
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2) 2025 FHE = (2) 2025 TENANCY AGREEMENTS
N K 2024FEFHEHZEN2024F12831HE Given that each of the 2024 Tenancy Agreements expired on
o R2024F 118228 AEE ((EAMEA) # 31 December 2024, on 22 November 2024, the Group (as
KRBT WEAET) ST MW ANBERZE 4E tenant) entered into the following five tenancy agreements
F2025FEFHEWE)) UEE Ll E > BAEY (collectively, the “2025 Tenancy Agreements”) with Great Port
H2025F1BA1HEE2025F12831H A LE (B3 (as landlord) to renew the former tenancies, each with a term
BEmA) : commencing from 1 January 2025 to 31 December 2025

(both days inclusive):

)
1ER2025F B HAENTA R RERER B# A&
Parties to the relevant Approximate Monthly
2025 Tenancy Agreements Gross Floor Area Rental Use

L = A mE (5 5)

No. Landlord Tenant Premises (sq. ft)

1. REf RRBMITH EENEEEESKRRBES 45,816 74820087 M FEf
10ARCE 12128 (FEfEREM RABES
1582E 161228 REHE) BHE
21EP15+ P18ZEP235¢ (excluding car
BHEAKEHE parking spaces

Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, and signage HK$748,200  Head office,
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, areas) car park
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 spaces and
on 2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, for rental of
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong signage areas
for advertising

2. AEf FRERITH BENEEBESRRREER 2,300 36,800 A
101#B%

Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, HK$36,800  Head office
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

3. REf RRBHRITH BENERAERG-HIR 5,531 11300087 HIHERR/

HIABSE1223 4 556% RLEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5and 6 on 5/F, HK$113,000  Branch office and/or
Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 Chatham Road multi-function room

South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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1HBI2025 A E RS T MEEEE BH RZ
Parties to the relevant Approximate Monthly
2025 Tenancy Agreements Gross Floor Area Rental Use
L 1 iR IES (Fr%)
No. Landlord Tenant Premises (sq. 1t)
4, KRBT FRBIR{TH BENRERRERE45-51%; 835 17,0008n  PITHER
HIKE5I86AE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 HK$17,000  Branch office
Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
5. RET BRBIRTH APABHIM A F%2-6B% 4,619 97,3008 EPIDTHERREEH
(r9) AR EHT730-8045% ) TBE S K 10EME EdD
Great Port EGL Tours Shop B, G/F and Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 MOP97,300  Macau branch office and
(Macau) Avenida da Praia Grande, Nos.2-6B Avenida call centre

de D Joao IV, Macau
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As at the date of the 2025 Tenancy Agreements, Great
Port is a majority-controlled company owned by Mr. Yuen
as to approximately 17.65%, Mr. Huen as to approximately
23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.05%, Ms. Lee
as to approximately 5.43% and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee as to
approximately 4.52%, all being the executive Directors. The
above-mentioned executive Directors together controlled
approximately 59.73% of the voting power of Great Port,
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and therefore Great Port is an associate of the said executive
Directors and thus a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the 2025
Tenancy Agreements constituted connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements. Details
of the 2025 Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 November 2024.
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Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company

has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 63 to 79 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of this report, there was no significant event of the
Group after the reporting date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C8 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
Year, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying
while the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is
vacated. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of
the Group’s management from time to time and should candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience be identified, the
Company will make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents not less than
one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick (appointed on 31 May 2024)
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. Ms. Yuen Ho
Yee, the Executive Director, is the daughter of Mr. Yuen Man Ying
and Ms. Lee Po Fun, both are the Executive Directors. Five of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee, are interested in the Company’s shares through their
interest in Evergloss, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
As at 31 December 2024, five of the Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing
Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, also have interests
in the shares of Great Port, which has certain transactions with
the Group which constituted connected transactions. Please refer
to the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 80 to 84, “Report of the Directors — Directors’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
on pages 44 to 47 and “Report of the Directors — Connected
Transactions and Directors’ Interests in Contracts” on pages 56 to
61 of this annual report for more details. Save as disclosed above,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.



TEEARSE
Corporate Governance Report

BIIFRITESRRVEILE

PREBIIFRITESIRBEEIL -

EFNHBEEXRER

FRBEBERESFSNFBEXLERIAERAS
T UERKAREMBENNB R - REFE  &E
EERXELEE -BEAEAE - ZHYEE-FTES
Y -REBEZ T WEERE  RBIESLE  HiRE
TRERERBALL) EBBSMAGN)EERZEF
(iZRBH (i) LEHRAG(VRETS ; JVIREHLE
HEl (RE-HERER) FTHEABNASE A
HAEIENARMBENSFIASRBENFREEXRS
REE -

EFLE-EERRHE

EWTEERBIFRTEECREADTIRSES
WRBER SEERASE - BHEBARTRE
BESRERAADREBEAT L HERERE
B TR o

INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent based on the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’
DEVELOPMENT

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year,
each of the Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun,
Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon, Mr. Chan Kim Fai,
Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by ways of attending seminars, reading training
materials and updates relevant to (i) the Group’s businesses; (ii)
regulatory updates; (iii) the Listing Rules; (iv) anti-corruption; or (v)
Environmental, Social & Governance (‘ESG”) Practices.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three
years. Such term is subject to his/her retirement by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and Mr. Chan
Kim Fai shall retire at the 2025 AGM and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least
four times a year.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting
of the Company held during the Year:

LT
HE/ AERERE
Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

EiZ @ﬁﬁ’“@ £ |
RRBEXE EEE83 ZEE8gHE ZEgEE ZEgEH ZRggxE
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination ~ Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
HiTEZE Executive Directors
RNEEE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 1/ 4/4 - - 11 1/1
BE2EE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 11 4/4 = = = =
2RIRE Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 1/ 4/4 - 3/3 - -
FEFUL Ms. Lee Po Fun 11 4/4 - - 171 1
REBEZT Ms. Yuen Ho Yee 1/ 4/4 - = = =
HEERE Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon 11 4/4 = = = =
BUFHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BRIELE Mr. Chan Kim Fai 11 4/4 3/3 3/3 11 11
SEERE Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick
(R2024%F5F31 B EZRF) (appointed on 31 May 2024) 0/0 3/3 2/2 2/2 0/0 0/0
HERUL Ms. Wong Lai Ming 11 4/4 33 3/3 171 1
BEERE Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric

(1R202455F31B R 7) (retired on 31 May 2024)

11 11 11 11 11 11

RRBEXRS
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5H31HE1T (2024 FERERBEKRD]) ©
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FEHREEEMINEZHENTE HE ARG ° 1220245F
REBFARG L SEEFEHUERIRAZRZR L > WL
BREFANETRR RERREBERRAEREEFET
BRERRNER -
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 31 May 2024
(‘2024 AGM”).

At the 2024 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2024
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014 with
specific written terms of reference in accordance with the provisions
set out in the CG Code. During the Year, the Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman),
Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick (appointed on 31 May 2024), Ms. Wong
Lai Ming and Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (retired on 31 May 2024).

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor; (i) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee () reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2024 respectively; (i) reviewed the external auditor’s
reports to the Audit Committee on their statutory audit of financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and their
independent review of the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2024; (iii) reviewed the audit plan of
the external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2024; (iv)
reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system; and (v) made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditor and approval of the engagement letter of the external
auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. During
the Year, the Risk Management Committee comprises a total of
four members, being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung
Shing Chiu, and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick
(appointed on 31 May 2024), Ms. Wong Lai Ming and Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric (retired on 31 May 2024). Accordingly, a majority
of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held three meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control system of the Group, the Group’s high-level
related risks and key emerging risks and the controls in place to
mitigate such risks and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. During the Year, the
Nomination Committee comprises a total of five members, being
two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick
(appointed on 31 May 2024), Ms. Wong Lai Ming and Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric (retired on 31 May 2024). Accordingly, a majority
of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, reviewed and
recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr. Lo Kam
Cheung Patrick as an Independent Non-executive Director, and
recommended to the Board on relevant matters relating to the re-
election of retiring Directors at the 2024 AGM.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity” of this
Corporate Governance Report for details of the Board’s policy on
board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. During the Year, the
Remuneration Committee comprises a total of five members,
being two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and
Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick (Chairman) (appointed on
31 May 2024), Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Ms. Wong Lai Ming and Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric (retired on 31 May 2024). Accordingly, a majority
of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group, discussed and recommended
the remuneration package of the newly appointed Independent
Non-executive Director, reviewed the remuneration package of
the individual Executive Directors and senior management as
well as reviewed the remuneration of Independent Non-executive
Directors for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the

NEEREINSHESIERBIZER 2D NEEFFRE  annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
B then in office by band for the Year are as follows:
A¥
Number of
i 48 751 Remuneration band individuals
£ %1,000,000/% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Board has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and has set measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) to
implement the Board Diversity Policy. All the Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board will review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

As at 31 December 2024, the Board consists of six male members
and three female members. Having taken into account the
measurable objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee considered that the Board had achieved
gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse
mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will review
the composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2024, approximately 52.13% of the Group’s
employee (including senior management) of the Group’s total
workforce are female and approximately 40% of the Group’s senior
management roles are held by women. The Board is satisfied that
the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND
AUDITOR RELATED MATTERS

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$2.3 million and
approximately HK$0.6 million, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the Year.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 92 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to
keep track, record and report identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted
to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high
risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements,
attention and risk treatment effort required.
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During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner is
required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the
risk response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The
risk register with the risk responses and residual risks is reported
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and reports
to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to
the Board’s oversight.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all
material aspect of controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The review covered the foreign exchange risk
management and the Group’s surplus cash management.

During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

- Cash and Treasury Management

Tour Operations
- Human Resources and Payroll
- IT General Controls

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSSs,
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws

the Articles of

of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem
relevant.

The Company, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING ("EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at 15/F,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business or resolutions specified in such
requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene a physical
meeting at one location, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS™ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
facilitating understanding of the Shareholders and potential
investors on the Group’s business, performance and strategies.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by
making available all the disclosures posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website.
Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to Directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company Secretary by mail to the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong.

To promote effective communication, the Company has
established a shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) and the Board shall review
it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. Shareholders can
refer to the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy” posted on the
Company'’s website for more details.
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The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
and considered that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy was
appropriate and effective during the Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the third amended and restated articles of
association of the Company was adopted by the Shareholders
at the 2024 AGM for the purpose of, among others, bringing
the articles of association of the Company in line with the latest
regulatory requirements in relation to the expanded paperless
listing regime and electronic dissemination of corporate
communications by listed issuers and the relevant amendments
made to the Listing Rules which took effect on 31 December
2023, as well as other housekeeping changes.

A copy of the second amended and restated memorandum
of association and the third amended and restated articles of
association of the Company is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, there were no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 73, is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated the creation
of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL
Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management Group
Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited (“EGL
Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (‘EGL Japan”),
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings
(Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL Investment Group Company
Limited (“EGL Investment”), EGL Market Company Limited (“EGL
Market”) and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a
director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is responsible for important decision making of the
Group, overseeing both tours and hotel operation development,
promoting the Japanese market, planning for tour itinerary in
Japan, supervising and training tour escorts, and strategic
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 40 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun who is an Executive
Director of the Company, and the father of Ms. Yuen Ho Yee who
is an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 67, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Huen
joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a director of
EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL
Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Huen is the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development of the Group, public relations, specialised
gourmet tourism, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in Macau and Shenzhen respectively.
Mr. Huen has over 40 years of extensive knowledge and
experience in the tourism industry.
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 70, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. He is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau,
EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is responsible for managing the receiving services for outbound
tourism in Japan, frontline sales and accounting matters of the
Group. Mr. Leung has over 40 years of extensive knowledge and
experience in the tourism industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 66, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. She is a member of
both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987. She also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Market and other subsidiaries of the Company. She is also
a director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the overall tour
operations, the human resources development and administration
matters of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over 40 years of extensive
knowledge and experience in the tourism industry. Mrs. Yuen is
the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying who is the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company, and the mother of Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee who is an Executive Director of the Company.
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Ms. Yuen Ho Yee (“Ms. Yuen”), aged 36, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 28 May 2021. Ms. Yuen joined
the Group in November 2011. She serves as a director of EGL
Tours and subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for
overseeing the operations in the marketing and public relations
information

department, product development department,

technology department, FIT products and customer services.
She is also responsible for formulating strategies for promoting
the Group’s image and business and developing new products
for the future development of the Group. She has over 13 years
of experience in the tourism industry. Ms. Yuen graduated in July
2010 from the University of Nottingham, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Management Studies. Ms. Yuen is the
daughter of Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, and Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive

Director of the Company.

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 60, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since 28 May 2021.
Mr. Cheang is the financial controller of the Group. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 36 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 66, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Mr. Chan
is currently an independent non-executive director of Magnificent
Hotel Investments Limited (stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property
Investments Limited (stock code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (stock code: 253) (all these companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan has also served as the sole proprietor
of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia.

Mr. Lo Kam Cheung Patrick (“Mr. Lo”), aged 71, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 31 May
2024. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Board.
He is responsible for overseeing the management of the Group
independently. He is a Chartered Professional Accountant under
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with
extensive experience in auditing and risk advisory.

Mr. Lo had served with a big 4 accounting firm for over 10
years, and had managed the internal audit and risk management
functions of a fully licensed bank and a mobile operator in Hong
Kong respectively for a total of over 15 years. Mr. Lo joined RSM
Hong Kong in 2007 as a partner overseeing its Risk Advisory
Services Department. Before retiring from the firm in 2019, Mr. Lo
had participated in initial public offering assignments of over 50
successfully listed companies. The team led by Mr. Lo at the firm
had also provided internal audit, risk management and corporate
governance advisory services to more than 20 companies listed
in Hong Kong, Singapore, the United States, and the United
Kingdom respectively. Mr. Lo is currently a Senior Advisor of RSM
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Lo is currently an independent non-executive director of
Multifield International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 898) and
Oriental Explorer Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 430), both of
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 66, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
Ms. Wong is a non-practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 63, has been
the company secretary of the Company since 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 40 years of experience
in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong holds a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
and a bachelor of law degree from Peking University. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 205, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
for Travel Related Business

(refer to notes 4(h), 7 and 24 to the consolidated financial
Statements)

The Group’s travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”) includes the following revenue streams with
different revenue recognition basis.

The Group’s revenue from provision of package tours
is recognised over time in which the control of services
are transferred to the customers because the customers
simultaneously receive and consume benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as it performs. Payment is made to the
Group before the customers enjoy the tour services.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
for Travel Related Business (Continued)

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages,
individual travel elements (together with FIT package referred to as
“FIT Products”) such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of ancillary travel related
services, such as, car rental, travel visa application and travel
insurance arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time when
the booking or arrangement services are performed or tickets
are delivered to and have been accepted by the customers.
The Group is the agent in these transactions and the revenue is

recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain transactions,
including sales of admission and transportation tickets and
merchandise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
control of the products is transferred to the customers, being
when the goods are sold to the customers, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
goods, the customers have obtained the physical possession or
the legal title of the goods and the Group has present right to
payment.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue derived from the
Travel Related Business of approximately HK$1,507,103,000. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group had customer deposits received
(including unexpired discount vouchers) from Travel Related
Business of approximately HK$136,234,000 which are recognised
as contract liabilities.

We have identified revenue recognition for the Travel Related
Business as a key audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Group and because it involves
highly customised information technology systems to record the
transactions and certain manual procedures to determine the
appropriate recognition point, all of which give rise to an inherent
risk that revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or could
be subject to manipulation.

In addition, inappropriate recognition of revenue could result in
misstatement of the contract liabilities received as recorded at the
reporting date.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuead)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
for Travel Related Business (Continued)

Our Response
Our key audit procedures included:

= Performing review of overall information technology general
controls and application controls;

= Performing test of controls and substantive testing on
revenue cycle;

- Performing data analytical procedures on revenue from
provision of package tour;

- Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue to assess the
timing of revenues recorded;

- Testing on sampling basis, whether revenue transactions
recorded around the end of the financial reporting period
by inspecting the terms and conditions agreed with the
customers and timing on control of goods or services
transferred to customers; and

- Testing on sampling basis on the customer deposits
received as at the reporting date by tracing the receipts to
the supporting documents and reviewing the recognition of
revenue in the subsequent reporting period in accordance
with the respective recognition policies of the respective
services provided or products sold.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

° plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number: PO5057

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
B E20245F12831H LEFF[E For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W & Revenue 1,632,532 1,366,020
THE A AS Cost of sales (1,259,327) (1,026,252)
EH] Gross profit 373,205 339,768
H A~ e R E538 8588 Other income, gains and losses, net (4,314) 2,150
HEMZ Selling expenses (91,303) (70,007)
THHEXZ Administrative expenses (175,885) (159,446)
Hi&EMZ Other operating expenses (147) (55)
B E AR LA Share of results of associates 3,226 2,193
ME A Finance costs (12,688) (23,183)
RIS A A Profit before income tax 92,094 91,420
FriSR = Income tax expense (20,999) (19,586)
FEEF Profit for the year 71,095 71,834
HEOEHMDEEEEN Other comprehensive income, that
Hth 2|l - may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
MEBINEF Exchange differences on translation of
PE =% foreign operations (16,978) (10,824)
FE(GIR BB IMNIE A BIRY Share of exchange differences on
PER =% translation of foreign associates (2,091) (1)
HEeEnsfhrwE, Effect on cash flow hedge,
NERIEIE net of tax - (791)
HBEASEHHEEIEZMN  Other comprehensive income, that will
H2mia : not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
RIRZESHBEZ Remeasurement of provision for long
BifistE service payments (837) (370)
FEHME2EmRE Other comprehensive income for the year,
MR IE net of tax (19,906) (11,986)
FESEINELEEE Total comprehensive income for the year,
&R IE net of tax 51,189 59,848
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malEmkEMEENER
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
# 220245128318 LEFFE For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
=3 FET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FELEEER - Profit for the year attributable to:
ZN/NEIEZ TN Owners of the Company 70,744 71,657
JEIERG R R Non-controlling interests 351 177
71,095 71,834
FEL 2 EUR R 42878 . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ZiN/NETEZZ= N Owners of the Company 50,626 59,485
JEVER = Non-controlling interests 563 363
51,189 59,848
EREEEANEGLRNZ Earnings per share for profit
FREF attributable to owners of the Company
—E AR E#E GBI — Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 14.08 14.26

094 H=@iEERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
12024128 31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
et FHET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EREEE Non-current assets
M BEKRRKRE Property, plant and equipment 14 365,298 416,503
EREEE Right-of-use assets 156 24,283 25,497
REE AT m Interests in associates 16 10,455 10,688
EIERRIEE = Deferred tax assets 17 63,765 82,924
Sl RTEMR Deposits and prepayments 20 1,897 1,835
465,698 537,447
TMENEE Current assets
= Inventories 18 930 1,313
& 5 AR Trade receivables 19 13,786 10,235
Sl FANTREMEKEE  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 98,109 75,250
FE WL B & A B BR TR Amount due from an associate 16(b) 3,981 3,816
=N IS Dividend receivables from an associate 684 =
HIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 21 10,296 10,240
RITEAREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 21 169,242 219,940
297,028 320,794
mEmaE Current liabilities
B S EMNER Trade payables 22 45,634 37,540
FESTFRIE K LAt FE 1T BR Accruals and other payables 23 57,796 55,207
FETAR S Dividend payable 11 = 35,172
= =N Contract liabilities 24 136,612 127,987
AR A=NEIISE N Amounts due to associates 16(b) 3,071 2,323
HEaR| Lease liabilities 15 39,800 39,508
mIEEE Provision for taxation 7,800 4,397
RITER Bank borrowings 25 61,115 31,108
351,828 333,242
mEaERE Net current liabilities (54,800) (12,448)
MEERRHER Total assets less current liabilities 410,898 524,999
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

12024%12H31H As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023
bzt FET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
B Provision 26 541 602
REARFE =5 H Provision for long service payments 30 7,417 5,653
RITEN Bank borrowings 25 208,355 281,901
HEEaE Lease liabilities 15 7,707 8,957
FE AT E™M Loans from a related company 34(b) 90,544 182,741
314,564 479,854
BEFE Net assets 96,334 45,145
R EQUITY
EAREREA Capital and reserves attributable to
B AR R EE owners of the Company
[N Share capital 27 50,245 50,245
i Reserves 28 47,789 (2,837)
98,034 47,408
JEER R Non-controlling interests 33 (1,700) (2,263)
TR AR KR Total equity 96,334 45,145
RRESE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXH 2Rl
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
ITESE WITES

096 H=EiEERARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Executive Director

Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B E2024512831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2024

ERATER AR
Attributable to owners of the Company

(R3tE8R) /
R  ROEE  AHEE  EREE  BRRA HERE  REEA G FPREE  RElE

(Accumulated

Foreign losses)/ Non-

Share Share Merger Statutory Capital  exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve*  contribution* reserve* earnings* Total interests equity

ThT THT TR TEL ThL ThL TR TR TR ThT
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000

20241 B1R At January 2024 50245 10163 (58214) 872 53886 (5185) (57684 47,408 (2269 45145
FEEH Proft for the year - - - - - - 70,744 70,744 351 74,095
Eft2Eks Other comprehensive income
REBIERN Exchange differences on translation of
ERER foreign operations - - - - - (17,190) - (17,190) 212 (16,978)
EEREEMEEARN Share of exchange differences on
ERZER translation of foreign associates - - - - - (2,091) - (2,091) - (2,091)
RERBEREZ Remeasurement of provision for
BiiE long service payments - - - - - - (837) (837) - (837)
FE2EANRER Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (19,281) 69,907 50,626 563 51,189
1420245128318 At 31 December 2024 50,245 110,163 (58,214) 872 53,884 (71,139) 12,223 98,034 (1,700) 96,334
* ERBEBEAREM BT RAAMERE] - * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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mEEmEEgR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
# 220245128318 LEFFE For the year ended 31 December 2024

LG 2 WN 4
Attributable to owners of the Company
2 BiiaE AltEE AR BRRA SEEE il 2itEE & FERER ot
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger Statutory Capital exchange Hedging  Accumulated controling Total
capital premium* reserve” reserve’  contribution* reserve” reserve” losses* Total interests equity
TER TER TER THR TER TER TET THn TER TER THR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1202351818 At 1 January 2023 50,245 145,335 (88,214) 872 53,884 (40,847) 791 (128971) 23,09 (2,626) 20,469
FREF Profit for the year - - - - - - - 71,657 1,657 177 71,834
Rt g Other comprehensive income
REBNEBS Exchange differences on translation of
ERER foreign operations - - - - - (11,010) - - (11,010 186 (10,824)
EEREENEE AT Share of exchange diferences on
ERER translation of foreign associates - - - - - ) - - ) - )
ReneHAzEY Effect on cash flow hedge,
MksE net of tax - - - - - - (791) - (791) - (791)
RERBLREZ Remeasurement of provision for
BH:E long service payments - - - - - - - (370) (370) - (370)
FEREREAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (11,011) (791) 71,287 59,485 363 59,848
BRIRE (Hi211) Special dividends note 11) - (85,172) - - - - - - (35,172) - (35,172)
1*2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 50,245 110,163 (88,214) 872 53,884 (51,858) - (67,684) 47,408 (2,263 45,145

* ZERBBERGEVBRRRPNOMEEE
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*

The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
B E2024512831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Mzt TER FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EERHESXZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
PRPTISIR AT & Profit before income tax 92,094 91,420
K Adjustments for:
M- -BEKRREITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8 15,427 31,980
FREEEINE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 18,350 17,836
HEYE BEREE Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

B8 (W) 348 plant and equipment, net 8 147 (45)
RIERE 2 W& Gain on termination of lease 7 - (619)
HEWERE 2 TAHAE 8548 (Reversal of allowance)/allowance for expected credit

(EHBOE) EE losses on other receivables 7 (333) 929
BEEIWIRZTAEAS 5E518  Expected credit losses on trade receivables 7 82 335
BMTHE A B2 TEH Expected credit losses on

EEK1E loans to an associate 7 - 800
BB A Finance costs 8 12,688 23,183
RITERF B WA Interest income on bank deposits 7 (815) (2,770)
35 78 9 70 2 [B] Reversal of written off of prepayments 7 - (9,520)
HAE W R 2 B Mi3H 1=ER Bad debts written off in respect of other receivables 8 - 100
RiE B BB Loss on modification of related party loans 7 5,898 8,122
SRITENEEREE (&)  Loss/(gain) on modification of bank borrowings 7 181 (50)
i =N Share of results of associates (3,226) (2,193)
SEBTEFHAIZ Operating cash flows before

SERTRE working capital changes 140,493 159,508
EEHRLD Decrease in inventories 305 399
B 52 FEWARIZ /0 Increase in trade receivables (4,522) (4,109)
Sl FENRREMEWER  (ncrease)/decrease in deposits, prepayments and

(g R other receivables (22,797) 7,022

FE U B E A B BR R (Increase)/decrease in amount due from
(g Rk an associate (165) 1,726
B 5 e BRIE 0 Increase in trade payables 8,289 22,061
FEEt B K M FE{SBRIG AN Increase in accruals and other payables 5,032 14,085
SHaEENm Increase in contract liabilities 8,658 27,208
FES B & A B BR FRIE N Increase in amounts due to associates 748 2,303
RHRBSEEEN Increase in provision for long service payments 927 733
EEELCHE Cash generated from operations 136,968 230,916
(B REIPTER Income tax (paid)/refund (4,199) 151
EETHEL 2 FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 132,769 231,067
2024  Annual Report 2024 099
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
sz FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
KREGFHELEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEYE BENEB Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,383) (9,561)
HEVE BEKRREZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

FTi8sIE plant and equipment - 205
ERERIRIRITEMR Placement of pledged bank deposits (56) (2,105)
BUF E Interest received 815 2,770
FE U ﬁﬁ%’& B i S Dividend received from an associate 684 =
BENB IR TE Capital injection into an associate upon

incorporation of an associate - (400)
Bl =Nk E Advance to an associate 16(c) - (800)
RE BT BHE F5E Net cash used in investing activities (3,940) (9,891)
MEEHEEZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
ENAREEBEARE Dividends paid to owners of the Company 11 (35,172) =
IRITBRPTIERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 38 20,000 =
BEIRITER Repayments of bank borrowings 38 (34,186) (27,638)
ERE R BER Repayment to a related company 38 (105,000) (150,000)
ENHEERE ARSI D Principal element of lease rental paid 38 (18,083) (16,886)
ENHEEREZFEEBD Interest element of lease rental paid 38 (1,433) (1,384)
EAFHE Interest paid 38 (3,809) (10,549)
HE T % F5E Net cash used in financing activities (177,683) (206,457)
RERREEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
CRIZD) /1810758 cash equivalents (48,854) 14,719
IMHEPE RSN A Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,844) 921
FYRERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 219,940 204,300
FERFERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 21 169,242 219,940
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2024512831H LEEFE For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.
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5o

B E2024F12831HIEFE 26 BHREKRTD
EEEg2025FE3828H it o

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2024 were approved by the board of directors
on 28 March 2025.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

@

(®)

)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024%12H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(@

Adoption of amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2024

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA to the Group’s financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024:

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants and Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause (‘HK-Int 5
(Revised)')

o Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in Sale
and Leaseback

o Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements

Other than the amendments to HKAS 1, none of
these amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior period. The Group has not early applied any
amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impact on the applications
of these amended HKFRSs are summarised below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2024 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants and Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause ('HK-Int
5 (Revised)')

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements in 2020 and 2022 clarified that liabilities are
classified as either current or non-current, depending
on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
period. Following the amendments, the HKICPA
updated HK-Int 5 (Revised) to update the references to
the amendments to HKAS 1. The conclusions in HK-Int
5 (Revised) are unchanged.

Classification is unaffected by the entity’s expectations
or event after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a
waiver or a breach of covenant that an entity is required
to comply with only after the reporting period).

Covenants of loan arrangements will not affect
classification of a liability as current or non-current at
the reporting date if the entity must only comply with
the covenants after the reporting date. However, if
the entity must comply with a covenant either on or
before the reporting date, this needs to be considered
in the classification as current or non-current even if
the covenant is only tested for compliance after the
reporting date.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2024 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants and Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause ('HK-Int
5 (Revised)') (Continued)

The amendments require disclosures if an entity
classifies a liability as non-current and that liability is
subject to covenants with which the entity must comply
within 12 months of the reporting date. The disclosures
include:

° the carrying amount of the liability;

° information about the covenants (including the
nature of the covenants and when the entity is
required to comply with them); and

o facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that
the entity may have difficulty complying with the
covenants.

The amendments must be applied retrospectively
in accordance with the requirements in HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

()

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

° Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1, Lack of
Exchangeability’

° Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
7, Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments?

o HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
and HKAS 7, Annual Improvement to HKFRS
Accounting Standards — Volume 112

° HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

° HKFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2026.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027.

& No mandatory effective date determined yet.

The Group is in process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and standards
is expected to be in period of initial application.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which was issued by the HKICPA in July
2024 supersedes HKAS 1 and will result in major
consequential amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards including HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation
of Financial Statements (renamed from Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors). Even though HKFRS 18 will not have any
effect on the recognition and measurement of items in
the consolidated financial statements, it is expected
to have a significant effect on the presentation and
disclosure of certain items. These changes include
categorisation and sub-totals in the statement of profit
or loss, aggregation/disaggregation and labelling of
information, and disclosure of management-defined
performance measures.

The adoption of HKFRS 19 is optional. HKFRS 19
specifies the disclosure requirements that an entity
is permitted to apply to substitute the disclosure
requirements in other HKFRS Accounting Standards.
The Company’s shares are listed and traded in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Therefore, it
has public accountability according to HKFRS 19 and
does not qualify for electing to apply the standard to
prepare its financial statements.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

@

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(b)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(@

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel and other buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Freehold land is not depreciated.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(€

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Leases
Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short term leases of office
equipment and travel buses and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The election for
short-term leases is made by class of underlying asset
to which the right of use relates. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities
for both of the choice for the leases in respect of office
equipment and travel buses. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Subsequent to the commencement date, under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the shorter of useful lives and lease term.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(€

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(9

Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

20244% Annual Report 2024 115



BA#53R3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMBRERNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

4., EXGHEBE®

O ZHIR@®

Y

(i)

EMEE (#B)

BETR

BRI A MR ENRERESE
WMIFENEE BHER TS RA
BURZRERELBHEMUATE
REBEMASENEMEERRRA
ERMEBIESE-FBRAERI
m R BB U ER B m PRS- (E
RIS LE R S0 B B W i S R I I 18
PP AR SR o

Tt B E A B AR
REEMIZEIE AT 2R E Z FEUR
REREMEMEERDTEREEBE
NEEEE THAREEBEERZUTH
R—EEENE . (1) +ZESTEHR
FEEBE . LR REABRE 2@
BANARERBNEGRELENTEIRE
B8 ;3 (2 FIRATEREEHE
tE75 AR T AEHAERAMET A B
REERNEHRELENTEREESR.
K& RHREEBERE BHNREDR
BAarEEmEBREERRHNRESGN
AR o

BRHREEHIRREEHEHENBRME
LEt - EEBERDNBESHNTELE
EEZARAGHNRERERAEER
R ZFTAREREZ Z8EtE-
ZERHEBEREERABBERANRMBE
BEETER-

116 S=FEEERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

()

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(9

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9's simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, current creditworthiness
of the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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(1)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group in full.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full or
(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(9

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
dividend payables, amounts due to associates,
loans from a related company, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

©)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(iv)  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

(v)  Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(h)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

() Package tours

Revenue for package tours is recognised over
time in accounting period in which the control
of services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers enjoy the tour
services.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(1)

(iif)

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel accommodations, food
and beverage and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised over time
in the accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided to the
customer.

Sales of FIT Products, ancillary travel related
products and services

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”)
packages, individual travel elements (together
with FIT packages referred to as “FIT Products”)
such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of
ancillary travel related services, such as, car
rental, travel visa application and travel insurance
arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time
when the booking or arrangement services are
performed or tickets are delivered to and have
been accepted by the customers. The Group is
the agent in these transactions and the revenue is
recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain
transactions, including sales of admission and
transportation tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of the products is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to the customers,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods, the
customers have obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the goods and the Group has
present right to payment.

The Group does not provide any sales-related
warranties. There is no right of return by
customers under the Group’s standard contract
terms, except for sales of certain train tickets.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(h) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

v)

(V)

Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in Japan. Travel
bus service revenue is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel bus services
are provided to the customer.

Sale of merchandises

The Group sells goods directly to customers.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
product is transferred to the customers. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchase the product. Discounts
and other cash incentive to customers are
accounted for as reduction of the transaction
prices.

Other income

Commission income is recognised when the
goods or services on which the commission is
calculated are delivered.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer,
the Group obtains right to receive consideration
from the customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services
to the customer. The combination of those
rights and performance obligations give rise to
a net asset or a net liability depending on the
relationship between the remaining rights and
the performance obligations. Contract liabilities
are recognised for services to be provided
to customers represented by the excess of
consideration received from the customers
according to agreed customer billing schedules
over cumulative revenue recognised.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(1)

0)

Income tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to
the maximum mandatory contributions as required
by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in Japan are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by a government-
affiliated corporation (the “National Pension Scheme”).
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the National
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

0)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payments obligation

Long service payment (“LSP”) under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance (“the Ordinance”) is
categorised as a defined benefit plan. Employees
qualified under the Ordinance are entitled to LSP in
certain circumstances specified in the Ordinance. There
are no legal funding requirements on employers and
the Group does not have any arrangement in place to
settle its payment obligation in the future.

The Group’s obligation to LSP is measured at:

- Gross LSP obligation estimated using the
projected unit credit method discounted to its
present value using yields available on high
quality corporate bonds (or government bonds
if there is no deep market in such high quality
corporate bonds) that have maturity dates
approximating to the terms of the liabilities and
are denominated in the same currency as the
post-employment benefit obligations; less

= Negative service costs. Under the Ordinance
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group can offset the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions against the Group’s LSP
obligations. The Group regards these MPF
contributions are deemed contributions by
employees towards the LSP benefits. The
nature is negative service costs. These deemed
contributions are estimated by applying an
expected investment return rate on the MPF
contributions and then attributed to periods of
service using the same attribution method for
gross LSP obligation.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

(K

Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payments obligation (Continued)

Service costs are recognised in profit or loss, and
include current and past service costs (including result
from a plan amendment).

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss, and
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the LSP obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the balance of the LSP obligation,
considering the effects of benefit payments during the
period.

Remeasurements of the LSP obligation, including
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

right-of-use assets;

interests in associates; and

prepayments

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(k)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the cash generating
unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(0

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

)

(i

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(m) Related parties (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

(n) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(1)

(i)

(iv)

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(d). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

ECLs of receivables

The Group determines the ECLs of trade and other
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The provision matrix is
determined based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The ECLs
of other receivables is determined based on 12-month
ECLs because there is no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as actual
or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the management.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Estimation of long services payment obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payment depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of the provision for long
service payment. Details of key assumptions and
impact of possible changes in key assumptions are
disclosed in note 30.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

° Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

° Sale of merchandises (“Sale of Merchandises
Business”)

° Hotel room rental and ancillary services (“Hotel
Business”)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income,
gains and losses, selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other operating expenses, share of results of associates and
finance costs directly attributable to each operating segment.
Central administrative costs are not allocated to the
operating segments as they are not included in the measure
of the segment results that are used by the chief operating
decision-makers for assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including cash at banks and on hand and
certain prepayments and other receivables which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of operating
segments as these assets are managed on a group basis.
Likewise, segment liabilities exclude loans from a related
company and corporate liabilities, such as certain accruals
and other payables, which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segments and not
allocated to segments.
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6. AEHRE @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
@ FEESES (@) Business segments
g
e[ BIEER i sy
Travel
Related Hotel
Business Business Elimination Total
TR TR TAET TR
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
EE2024F12831H For the year ended
LLEE: 31 December 2024:
& Revenue
AERDHKER Reportable segment revenue 1,507,638 139,429 (14,535) 1,632,532
REDHAZ W Inter-segment revenue - (14,535) 14,535 -
BEIMNIE R From external customers 1,507,638 124,894 = 1,632,532
E2RDEHER Reportable segment profit 86,205 41,289 = 127,494
ME BERREITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (3,286) (12,141) - (15,427
FRREENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (18,350) - - (18,350)
EhBE AT R Share of results of associates 3,226 - - 3,226
BB Finance costs (1,493) (3,383) - (4,876)
k25 Income tax expense (8,611) (12,199) - (20,810)
ERPHNEE Reportable segment assets 308,332 451,499 - 759,831
BES: V=l Reportable segment liabilities 292,594 274,663 - 567,257
REFERHEE Additions to non-current assets 6,098 758 = 6,856
e N EEFE Share of net assets of associates 10,455 - - 10,455
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6. DEPIRE @ 6.

@ EH7E @@

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

fixitE L
HEES HEXR BIEED 1838 st
Travel Sale of
Related  Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Elimination Total
TET FTET TET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#%2023F12831H For the year ended
LLFE 31 December 2023:
Wi Revenue
EES: &6 Reportable segment revenue 1,264,847 7,368 111,616 (17,811) 1,366,020
BEDBAZ KRG Inter-segment revenue = = (17,811) 17,811 =
BBEIMNEE R From external customers 1,264,847 7,368 93,805 = 1,366,020
B 2HAEEF/ (5518) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 137,907 (869) 746 - 137,784
ME -BERRGITE  Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (2,140) (377) (29,463) = (31,980)
TREEERE Depregiation on right-of-use assets (17,836) - = - (17,836)
EEHE AR XE Share of results of associates 2,593 (400) - - 2,193
MEMA Finance costs (1,976) = (3,568) = (5,544)
Fiisi (%) /% Income tax (expense)/credit (19,052) (738) 341 - (19,449)
AERDBPEE Reportable segment assets 338,848 6,141 498,217 843,206
2R MaRE Reportable segment liabilities 252,234 793 333,069 586,096
REFRBEE Additions to non-current assets 22,474 133 3,188 25,795
LS AREEFE  Share of net assets of associates 10,688 = = 10,688
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6. DEPRE @

)

A28 7 & m R  EEREIEZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

H#ER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2024 2023
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
U &= Revenue
A2{ oUW R Reportable segment revenue 1,632,532 1,366,020
el Consolidated revenue 1,632,532 1,366,020
2024 2023
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREFIF IR A0 EF Profit before income tax
BIE=: 8k byl Reportable segment profit 127,494 137,784
HAtE5183%8 Other loss, net (5,643) (7,684)
B A Finance costs (7,812) (17,639)
RO EEMRE Unallocated corporate expenses (21,945) (21,041)
FRETISIR B4R S im A Consolidated profit before income tax 92,094 91,420
2024 2023
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AIERDIPEE Reportable segment assets 759,831 843,206
KO EEE Unallocated corporate assets 2,895 15,035
OREE Consolidated total assets 762,726 858,241
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(b)
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

2024 2023
FHET TEIT
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
afE Liabilities

AE2RDIBEE Reportable segment liabilities 567,257 586,096
RO EEERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 99,135 227,000
REEas Consolidated total liabilities 666,392 813,096

% E (c) Geographic information

TREFAEERBINDE P I K bR
ETHMEEMELEREBEEEINERBEE
(MEEMIEREBNEE)) O !

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers and non-current

assets other than financial assets and deferred tax

assets (“Specified non-current assets”):

REIMIE F B
(HEEFRMEMES)
Revenue from
external customers
(by customer location)

RENFERBEE
(RBRFTEHE2)
Specified
non-current assets
(by physical location)

2024 2023 2024 2023
FAT FAT FAT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AR Hong Kong and Macau
(Fr7E3#h) (place of domicile) 1,501,265 1,266,220 31,777 32,397
HZs Japan 131,267 99,800 357,630 409,565
Hh Others - = 10,629 10,726
1,632,532 1,366,020 400,036 452,688

PREMDESEREBFEHHE R
BEABDEEKREEPONMMEEMETE

The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
place the Group regards as its hometown, has the

majority of operation and centre of management.
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6. DEFHRE @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

@ BHALTEEFZER (d)  Information about a major customer
REE2024F12831HIEFE » KEEH The Group did not have any single customer
EAEME-—FTRERMAER10%U EWE contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue

(20234 . %) during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
© WK HF (e) Disaggregation of revenue
gzl ESy BRHEREE BE£H
Travel Related Sale of Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
FET TET TET FEL FERT Fh FEx Fhx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHETR Primary geographical markets
BEHEM Hong Kong and Macau
(FrEst) (place of domicile) 1,501,265 1,258,852 - 7,368 - - 1,501,265 1,266,220
B Japan 6,373 5,995 - - 124,894 93,805 131,267 99,800
1,507,638 1,264,847 - 7,368 124,894 93,805 1,632,532 1,366,020
W B R R Timing of revenue recognition
B3 At a point in time 77,570 88,765 - 7,368 - - 77,570 96,133
PeliSin=ted Transferred over time 1,430,068 1,176,082 - - 124,894 93,805 1,554,962 1,269,887
1,507,638 1,264,847 - 7,368 124,894 93,805 1,632,532 1,366,020

() HR2028F108 > REBEEEE

REEA

R BRTEER H A0 D BB Tk A8 RE 2
B R DBEIEER) o B 7EBAE/NT 7

MIHE TS DI RFRE - B E2024F12H
S1HLEEE MEREEER DS
DEEBIAEN BZD WG R EE

EHATRERRER]

138 H=FisERARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(f)  In October 2023, the management of the Group

decided to consolidate its resources and refocus on its

core segments “Travel Related Business” and “Hotel

Business”. As a result, the Group proceeded to scale

down the “Sale of Merchandises Business” segment.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the result in

the segment of “Sale of Merchandises Business” had

become immaterial and revenue and results from this

segment are grouped into “Travel Related Business”.
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7. WEKREMUA - WE kSIS FEE 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET

WS B IERITE « EHEN M iR 1T AE R E IR R Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,

BIEREEREERFENEEFE;, BHTER ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental and

e M RIT AR RSP B IE 558 ; S W ancillary services; the net proceeds from FIT Products and

HE AFEMINZTEWZBRNESREU T ancillary travel related services; and sale of merchandises.

FA~ - The amounts of each significant category of revenue

recognised during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
TFAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W Revenue

e Package tours 1,430,068 1,176,082
BHR1TER (H:2) FIT Products (note) 25,115 27,099

BWEYMIRITERER & Ancillary travel related products and
BR#S (B7aE) services (note) 51,920 61,666
& il e Sale of merchandises 535 7,368
HEBER B &R Hotel room rental and ancillary services 124,894 93,805
1,632,532 1,366,020
Wit AEE B R1TE MR A T #HB MR 1TH R RS Note:The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain
ELENREERBIERNERRRESFE AU ancillary travel related services is considered as cash
WRE - HMstHF 8 EWREKASRIEE collected on behalf of principals as an agent, and thus
BITFR - recorded on a net basis. The gross proceeds received

and receivable are as follows:

2024 2023
FER FER
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FEW TS TIE 4R 28 Gross proceeds received and receivable 286,642 289,140

20244 % Annual Report 2024 139



BA#53R3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMBRERNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

7. W REMKA WS REIEEEE % 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

LOSSES, NET (Continuead)

TERHINEEEBEEWEREKREZESYNS The following table provides information about trade
HEENER receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:
1202445 1220234
12831H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B2 UK (H7219) Trade receivables (note 19) 13,786 10,235
eHNaE (Wits4) Contract liabilities (note 24) 136,612 127,987
2024 2023
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
H AU ~ W as K B518 7% %8 Other income, gains and losses, net
B 2 B5 18 3 28 Exchange loss, net (3,059) (1,775)
IRITEREE (BB W& (Loss)/gain on modification of
bank borrowings (181) 50
RIEAE 2 W& Gain on termination of lease - 619
BT R B WA (i 5E) Government sponsor income (note) 3,243 =
BRIZWTA Handling income 192 641
B2 RWIR TBHREERIE ECLs on trade receivables (82) (335)
HnEWER > TR E EE 18 Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for
EEOB S (EH) ECLs on other receivables 333 (929)
EXRFTHE NS 2EIAEERE  ECLs on loans to an associate - (800)
IRITEAF B WA Interest income on bank deposits 815 2,770
RE S ERARER Loss on modification of related party loans (5,898) (8,122)
EE T8 1 =R 2 [B] 3% Reversal of written off of prepayments - 9,520
FEIFUWTA Sundry income 323 511
(4,314) 2,150
Bz REIE2024F12B31HILEE  AEF A E Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
B 7 5k 17 [ 7 52 BURT 4 B UK A 493,243,000 7© recognised government sponsor income of approximately
(20234 : THEIT) © =% F BUIT B WA L B HK$3,243,000 (2023: HK$NIl) in respect of leading package

mAEEM IR HAMNEFE

tours to Japan. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to these government sponsor income.

140 S=FEHEERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



ARE B RERNEE

wh 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024%12H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

8.

BREF1STR AT

BREFGMATSF MR GIA) UTEERFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):
2024 2023
TAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1% B4 6 3 BN Auditors’ remuneration 2,287 2,225
HAEWER =~ Bad debts written off in respect of
B i3 = AR~ other receivables * - 100
RAERZNEFEERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 2,090 4,540
ME--BEKRREITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 15,427 31,980
ERAEEEINTE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 18,350 17,836
HEME -BEKRKHE Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
B8 () $5e plant and equipment, net * 147 (45)
ME N Finance costs:
—fHEaBEEEW — Interest expense incurred on
MERZ (Hzt15) lease liabilities (note 15) 1,433 1,384
—EERMIEEEN — Interest expense incurred on
MERXZ derivative financial instruments - 197
—BEABEREEN — Interest expense incurred on
FMERZ loans from a related company 7,812 17,988
—IRITEREEN — Interest expense incurred on
M ERE bank borrowings 3,443 3,614
12,688 23,183
BEMRA (BIEMEE1278 Employee costs (including directors’
BRI - emoluments in note 12):
— e REMEYEF — Salaries and other benefits in kind 170,811 139,133
—RIKEHE =R — Retirement scheme contributions 6,215 4,912
—RER%EE - Long service payments 1,542 978
178,568 145,023
* FrEZERY YA HMEEm% - * All these expenses are recorded as “other operating

expenses”.
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gl

FRiSHAX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2024 2023
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNHAIRIE — & B F) 151 Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—ARFERIEB — Tax for the year 1,134 1,476
—BREEE (B 2 — (Over)/under-provision in respect of
g prior year (164) 126
970 1,602
BVHARRIE— P E (R ¥ 18 Current tax - PRC Enterprise Income Tax
—KREERIE — Tax for the year 13 =
BENHAFRIE— B & F)1571 Current tax — Japan Profits Tax
—KFEIRIE — Tax for the year 6,616 2,171
IEIERIIE Deferred tax
—RAFEBTINGR — Charge to profit or loss for
Biat17) the year (note 17) 13,400 15,813
20,999 19,586

RERESEENABERRESHER A2
HERABERBRESIMAUNEEREEE B
REERFEHRERRBERRBESETES
HUE R SRR 1A -

H E20244F K2023F 12831 B IEFE » {55t fE
SRR A B E 2,000,000 70328.25% 1 HE B
MG > ML st BT EA &8 1B2,000,000%8 75
BIEB 73 HIl#216.5% 51 & & 220244 522023412
BI1HIEEE A5 FFSNMAGERNER
B EEAYE T 4 B 1216.5%RI TR R o
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The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and

the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the

Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman

Islands and the BVI respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2.0 million of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
for the portion of the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023. The profit of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime continued to be taxed at
16.5% for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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HZE2024%12H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

9.

FRSIFAS @

B E2024F 1283 1HIEFE BB HAR
THIRIEFORPIE E I B A B (& st FE LR A
FI212% (20234 1 12%) 518 o B E2024F 128
STHIEFE  AEEMNRFEENKB LA RBE
EEAtETRIET) (20234  #) o

HZE2024F12B31HIEEE  PEHBEMRER
ThARIE 5 R B = i Y Y B A B Y {5 5t B ST R i
F3225% (20234 : 25%) 518 o B E20235F128
STHIEFE  REBR P EEEMNE A S BE
EE ST AR o

REBAEENHBAS BRAMB RN ERSE
M MERGZERMNEHENERALEER (F
XA THAFER) » ZEMIERE E2024F
12831 HIEFERIRTEE RBENEGELS
REMEAEMEMREN F430.6%E4I34.6%
(20234 : 4980.6% £ 4934.6%) o B £2024F
20231283 1HIEFE > AERR B REEN
BB A B TF A st ST AR F] 0

<l

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2028:
12%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in Macau for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising
from the subsidiary operating in Macau for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2023:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to corporate
income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes
and business tax (hereinafter collectively referred to
as “Japan Profits Tax”) in Japan, which, in aggregate,
resulted in effective statutory income tax rates ranging
from approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6% (2023:
approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6%) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The Group
has estimated assessable profit arising from the subsidiaries
operating in Japan for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 20283.
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9. FRiSHRA @&

RERREFENAMBRAS KT star ik

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

I profit at applicable tax rates:
2024 2023
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
PRSI A Profit before income tax 92,094 91,420
BEBFERE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20234 : 16.5%) st EWRIE 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 15,196 15,084
REMBENEEEREEN Kﬁ}: Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
NEIZFERENREZE operating in other jurisdictions 7,587 567
AENRBEBENRE T E Tax effect of non-deductible items 2,383 4,035
BEFRMEBENRBE Tax effect of non-taxable items (669) (810)
REREREEENRBEE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised (346) (538)
EHED??%HIEEH?E MR TR & Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 58 2,402
Eﬁiﬁﬁ PR IERSIBIRE RN A Tax effect of previously unrecognised
RERIBEEENRBEE tax losses now recognised as
deferred tax assets (489) (1,026)
58 BB So Al R FE SR YA IE RS 18 Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (2,360) -
BEEE (B%) /T EEEE (Over)/under-provision in prior year (164) 126
HAth Others (197) (254)
20,999 19,586
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10.

11.

SrRZEF 10. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2024 2023
TFHT FHB7T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
& Earnings
KABER NG ET Profit attributable to owners of the Company 70,744 71,657
2024 2023
T & T A&
000 ‘000
kir &8 Number of shares
ZEKREE Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450

H FE2024F K2023F12A31HIEFEE » KA T
W EESE BT R ERBERFEAEIRER
BAER -

:35)

R2025F1H20H  EEEEERALRBERE
BREBUWNFRKREFAATRKRE (TBREY) o
15 7] iR B 2202553 526 H kS F 722025528
MHEXRBEERRLI A QB REL MO
%o

R2023F12B14H  EEEEERALRAETEK
ZERTBUNFIREFRE -FAKER
202451 B18H IR FH202451 B5H & K5 E]
ERFFRIA AT R L MAVALER

EETAERHKNEE2024F12H31HIEEFEE
BIERIREEIR B (20234 : ) o

11.

Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential
shares during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

DIVIDENDS

On 20 January 2025, the board of directors has declared
a special dividend of 6 Hong Kong cents per ordinary
share of the Company to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). The special dividends were paid on
26 March 2025 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on 11 February 2025.

On 14 December 2023, the board of directors has declared
a special dividend of 7 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share
of the Company to the Shareholders. The special dividends
were paid on 18 January 2024 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on 5 January 2024.

The board of directors do not recommend any payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).
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12. S5 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
EEHMIEEWNT Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:
HERHEM BER
BER RIATEA P/
g (Writa) (Hiztb) EEEe Hact
Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
THET THER TER THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
2024
HITEZE Executive directors
RXH Yuen Man Ying - 2,490 2,417 109 5,016
mEE Huen Kwok Chuen - 2,124 1,894 90 4,108
2 Leung Shing Chiu - 1,963 1,894 87 3,944
ZES Lee Po Fun - 2,024 1,828 86 3,938
R Yuen Ho Yee - 1,233 1,629 18 2,880
HEE Cheang Chuen Hon - 1,450 957 18 2,425
- 11,284 10,619 408 22,311
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
[ Chan Kim Fai 215 - - - 215
Wtk (5220245F Tang Koon Hung Eric
5A31BERMA) (retired on 31 May 2024) 81 - - - 81
HER Wong Lai Ming 185 - - - 185
iRt (122024%F Lo Kam Cheung Patrick
5A31HEZRA) (appointed on 31 May 2024) 116 - - - 116
597 - - - 597
597 11,284 10,619 408 22,908
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12. EEFHM

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

e R Ef BB R

EMET RREL BRI
itk (hizta) (Hztn) B a3
Salaries  Discretionary
and other and
benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total

TER TET TER TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2023
HITEE Executive directors
RN Yuen Man Ying = 2,435 2,421 105 4,961
BE2 Huen Kwok Chuen = 1,925 1,927 86 3,938
28 Leung Shing Chiu = 1,843 1,927 84 3,854
FES Lee Po Fun = 1,880 1,927 83 3,890
RAE Yuen Ho Yee = 1,193 1,600 18 2,811
g Cheang Chuen Hon = 1,403 997 18 2,418
= 10,679 10,799 394 21,872
BUFHTEE Indlependent non-executive directors
PRz E Chan Kim Fai 209 = = = 209
159 Tang Koon Hung Eric 191 = = = 191
=EH Wong Lai Ming 180 _ _ _ 180
580 = = = 580
580 10,679 10,799 394 22,452
Kzt - Notes:

ai ENEEAEREHENHENEATRITE
E2 R EMBYRER -

b: BBRRRBEADSERAERARRLEHFME
EgREMETE -

c:  REZE2024F12831H LLEE > f14 (20234 :
i) RATEEZEREFHM

a: Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable to
executive directors of the Company in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.

b: The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by the

remuneration committee.

@ During the year ended 31 December 2024, no (2023: Nil)
directors of the Company have waived emoluments.
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13. AABREHMAL 13.

rEBILESHFMA TR 5% (2023F 1 &
%) RERBES RENMWEHE I EXMEE12
o

ENSENTESREEEAS ROEAADE
=) WFEMBEEDT

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, five (2023: five) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 12
above.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2024 2023

A AE

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

% 1,000,00078 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
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14. Y- -BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAZE BER i KER
T AhigF K HARE EhaE pd BEkE st
Hotel
Freehold and other Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
and buldings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
THER TER TEn THEn TER T TEn TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1#2023%151H At 1 January 2023
A Cost 178,89 271,397 199,680 34,236 44629 17,155 21,288 767,281
Zithe Accumulated depreciation - (19,626) (174,650) (25,185) (42,402) (16,904) (16,716) (295,483)
REFE Net carrying amount 178,896 251,171 25,080 9,051 2,201 251 4572 471,798
HENNE12RHLEE For the year ended
31 December 2023
ERETE Opening net carrying amount 178,896 251,771 25,030 9,051 2,001 251 4572 471,798
hE Additions - 2,192 2,321 539 4,255 - 248 9,561
HE Disposal - - - - - (160) - (160)
il Depreciation - (5,098) (20,460) (3,236) (1,627) (63) (1,59) (31,980)
ERBZ Exchange adjustment (12,646) (17,651) (1529) (558) - - (332) (32,716)
EXREIE Closing net carrying amount 166,250 231,214 5,368 5,79 4,955 28 2,692 416,503
12023%12B310 At 31 December 2023
A Cost 166,250 254,500 190,647 33,376 48,866 16,669 20,519 729,827
Zithe Accumulated depreciation - (23,286) (185,279) (27,580) (43911) (15,641) (17,627) (313,324)
RE#E Net carrying amount 166,250 231,214 5,368 5,79 4,955 28 2,892 416,503
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14. YE - -BERRRE @

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
KRR EER &% FER
1 Hinig¥ & HA%E BlRfE RE BekE s
Hotel
Freehold and other Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
and buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TEn TEn TEn TEn T#En TEn Thn ThEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
HENUEF12BBILEE For the year ended
31 December 2024
ENEAEE Opening net carrying amount 166,250 231,214 5,368 5,79 4,955 28 2,892 416,503
RE Addtions - - 607 669 3,923 - 184 5,383
e Disposal - - - (147) - - - (147)
iE Depreciation - (@) (4,325) (2910) (1,993) - (1,422) (15,427)
ERBE Exchange adjustment (16,922) (23,331) (97) (433) (1) - (230) (41,014
EXREIE Closing net carrying amount 149,328 203,106 1,553 2,075 6,884 28 1,424 365,298
120245128318 At 31 December 2024
A Cost 149,328 208,594 175,425 31,622 52,701 13,629 19,360 670,659
Zithe Accumulated depreciation - (25,488) (173,872 (28,647) (45,817) (13,601) (17,936) (305,361)
REEE Net carrying amount 149,328 203,106 1,563 2,975 6,884 28 1,424 365,298

R2024F 128318 AEBEE 2 IEFKRE F
{E49149,328,00078 7t ( 20234 : 166,250,00075
7%) 52203,106,00078 7t (20234 : 231,214,00078
7T) U HS B A BI K A ZE R 1 0 DU R B IS & E A1

FLUIERFTEBERVRTER (FE25)
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As at 31 December 2024, freehold land and hotel and
other buildings of the Group located in Japan with a net
carrying amount of approximately of HK$149,328,000
(2023: HK$166,250,000) and HK$203,106,000 (2023:
HK$231,214,000) respectively, were pledged to secure the
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).
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15. EAEEE THEGR

KEFFSEAEN
FEERHEEMEMNE ZEEERNEES
THE - AR ERBEEUERSE -

lease term.

AERTHEETHERRHFHER  8EKRES
T -BEARE BERKEBEZHEESSHE

The Group as a lessee

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. The periodic rent is fixed over the

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment,
including travel buses and plant and equipment. Leases of

N AYE RE T FR o plant and equipment comprise only fixed payments over the
lease terms.
EHEEZE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
BREEEELAFDTNERAEESEZRE FE The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
e class of underlying asset is as follows:
1220244 1220234
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
FHET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEBRNEE Leased for own use,
DUHTE R AT carried at depreciated cost:
HEW= Rental premises 20,533 20,332
AR Office equipment 3,750 5,165
24,283 25,497
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15. FREEE THE&E @

KEEFERABEN @

EHESE (B

FR ERREEZFUT

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

Movements of right-of-use assets during the year:

HEME WARE st
Rental Office

premises equipment Total

FET FET TFET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R2023FE1H1H At 1 January 2023 15,754 2,607 18,361

NE Addition 10,152 6,082 16,234

RIEFEE Termination of lease - (1,923) (1,923)

rEs Depreciation (16,235) (1,601) (17,836)

HERBSTI2&E Effect of lease modification 10,661 = 10,661

72023%E12831HK At 31 December 2023 and

2024F181H 1 January 2024 20,332 5,165 25,497

NE Addition 1,473 - 1,473

TeEs Depreciation (16,935) (1,415) (18,350)

HEEBIIFE Effect of lease modification 15,663 = 15,663

122024F12831H At 31 December 2024 20,533 3,750 24,283
HEEE LEASE LIABILITIES

REBENHTZIREDHUT - The analysis of the present value of future lease payment is

as follows:

20244 F220234

12H31H 12H31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE B Current liabilities 39,800 39,508

ERBHEE Non-current liabilities 7,707 8,957

47,507 48,465
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15. ERESE HE&E® 15.

FEEFERABEN @
HEER (&)
FR-HEERZEHUT

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Movements of lease liabilities during the year:

HEME NG g 18t
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
FTAT AT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
120231 81H At 1 January 2023 15,783 3,330 21,885 40,998
HE Addition 10,152 6,082 - 16,234
RIEHE Termination of lease - (2,542) - (2,542)
HEETZFE Effect of lease modification 10,661 - - 10,661
FIEREX Interest expense 990 394 - 1,384
HAERT Lease payments (16,531) (1,739) = (18,270)
12023128318 K At 31 December 2023 and
20241818 1 January 2024 21,055 5,525 21,885 48,465
NE Addition 1,473 - = 1,473
HEETZFE Effect of lease modification 15,652 - - 15,652
FERX Interest expense 1,003 430 - 1,433
HAERT Lease payments (17,937) (1,579) - (19,516)
1120245128315 At 31 December 2024 21,246 4,376 21,885 47,507
12024%F12831H At 31 December 2024
EEEERY Short term lease expenses - = 48,932 48,932
A AHEESEHFEN Variable payments not included in the
HFHREEMR measurement of lease liabilities: 140 86 - 226
112023128 31H At 31 December 2023
R ERY Short term lease expenses = = 37,934 37,934
A AHEGEHEN Variable payments not included in the
FEHENR measurement of lease liabilities: 157 83 = 240
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

15. FREEE THE&E @

KEEFBEEN @)
HEEE (#)
RREENRZEEBELT ¢

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

REKAEM] FR RE
Future lease
payments Interest Present value
FHT THTT THT
*2024512831H At 31 December 2024 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBE—F Not later than one year 40,833 1,033 39,800
BB —FEEmEURN Later than one year and

not later than two years 4,964 368 4,596

BEMERAEFEUAR Later than two years and
not later than five years 3,221 110 3,111
49,018 1,511 47,507
KEBEELR FE RE

Future lease
payments Interest Present value
FHT FHETT FHTT
122023%F12831H At 31 December 2023 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
B —F Not later than one year 40,799 1,291 39,508
BE—FRMEURN Later than one year and

not later than two years 5,050 574 4,476

848 W F K AU Later than two years and
not later than five years 4,821 340 4,481
50,670 2,205 48,465
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16. REHE QB

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2024 2023

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEEE EFE Share of net assets 10,455 10,688
FEU B = A B BRFR (B aEb) Amount due from an associate (note b) 3,981 3,816
BERFH#E QT Batc) Loans to an associate (note ¢) - =
FEI B E A BIBRER (BaEb) Amounts due to associates (note b) 3,071 2,323
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16. 1
@

)
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BATEERD @

FR20244F 5 2023F 12531 H B9 & 4

SIFFIEAT -

RE)AHE

Name of company

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of associates as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

RRERTHBREBRAR (TEGLEERE)
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (‘EGL Korea”)

BRI EHEGLH 4B T EGLHAR))
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* (“EGL Okinawa”)

#AgdBEE (BRE)

Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”)

AEmE (B8 ARAR (THE&)
Nissay Shoji (HK) Company Limited (“Nissay”)

* A E T il
- R MEIE (A

Vil Ol O AN 2 C ki i

BERZEKERE -

sEfBL I e

R EmEDl FEER

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ interest held

operations indirectly Principal activities

FRE 38% MNERIEMHAEIRTE

Korea Provision of inbound
package tours in Korea

SF:N 38% I BEARMBIRE AR TE

Japan Provision of inbound
package tours in
Okinawa, Japan

SP:N 41% R BEREEEMIRTE

Japan Provision of local package
tours in Japan

HE 40% MREBHEDR

Hong Kong Sale of merchandises in
Hong Kong

2 Chinese name for identification purpose only
* English name for identification purpose only

(b) Amount(s) due from/to an associate/associates
is/are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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16. NEZE N TR @

©

R2023%F > AEE M E QS HEMEH
800,000 TTXMANRHEE ETH=ELQE]
NER A EILT ZEBRTEZEREM
FERFE2%F R BEREREERE -REE
EBETMG &5tk (HP e BEEr 17
M RREBERETRER QER) B A&
[ 52 75 b 4% 0] BE YR [B] R EE FIE > R 7R
2023%F > Bl 2 E KRB IEE M EEE800,000
BTSN ES B 2E R o

16.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continuead)

()

During the year 2023, the Group lent HK$800,000
to the associate, Nissay, for its operation. The loans
to the associate were unsecured,
HIBOR plus 2% per annum,
Based on the management assessment,

interest-bearing of
repayable on demand.
taking
into account, among others, historical information,
current conditions and forecast of future development
and market conditions, as appropriate, the Group
had considered it would be unlikely to recover the
outstanding amount and, accordingly, a loss allowance
of the entire outstanding loan amount of HK$800,000
was recognised during the year 2023.

ERTHME AT 2 EEEGNESE RN Movement in the loss allowance in respect of loan to an
T associate is as follows:

2024 2023

TFAT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

1818 At 1 January 800 -

FAERH Net loss allowance recognised

BiEEE R during the year = 800

K12831H At 31 December 800 800
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16. MEZEATIHER @

@

€

MBEEHIB (EAHERE)

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d) Summarised financial information (material

associates)
2024 2023
TFET FET
EGLE[E EGL Korea HK$'000 HK$'000
K12A31H8 As at 31 December
MENEE Current assets 34,659 33,043
EREEE Non-current assets 441 649
V=K Current liabilities (7,587) (5,566)
BEEFE Net assets 27,513 28,126
AEBREGLEEFE Group share of net assets 10,455 10,688
HE12B31HILEEE Year ended 31 December
Wz Revenues 45,154 35,712
A K 2 W ER AR EE Profit and total comprehensive income 8,490 6,990
B ERRE Dividends received and receivable 1,368 =

BB (TEAHE L E])

(e) Summarised financial information (immaterial

associates)

2024 2023
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

HZE12H31BLLEE Year ended 31 December
FERIE Loss for the year (133) (1,892)
Hittzms= Other comprehensive income - @)
S EmAEEE Total comprehensive income (133) (1,894)
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16. RIS AT @)

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

] ZIK%IE',“\JJ:EEE?HFE&E%:FH@ EANGIES) () The Group has discontinued recognition of its
o kERELZEH SN EER share of loss of certain associates. The amounts of
Ret258 (ThEiz %H ENBEREERE unrecognised share of those associates, extracted from

B)aF:

the relevant management accounts of associates, both

for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

2024 2023
TFAT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERAREDEERE ATEIE  Unrecognised share of losses of

associates for the year (57) (299)

RIBEEE R R EREMNL Accumulated unrecognised share of
B &~ B E5 18 losses of associates in prior years (839) (540)
(896) (839)

17. BERIEEE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

MNAEERBTEEEEREBEEE 2 Bl LS Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements
E =R N during the current and prior year are as follows:
YE 3 ARS8
& & o
B Hith (Hz2) Bt
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total
FHT FTHET FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
112024F181H At 1 January 2024 29,366 1,818 51,740 82,924
RAEEIB=E s A (#229)  Charge to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—ELXRDBERMER - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (1,627) 431 (12,204) (13,400)
bE R EAEE Translation adjustment (3,099) (177) (2,483) (5,759)
122024512H31H At 31 December 2024 24,640 2,072 37,053 63,765
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17. IEERIEEE @&

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continuea)

ES HMIaE1E
T & e
1 Hith (Hizz) W5t
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total
FET FAET FATT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
11202351818 At 1 January 2023 29,326 95 73,081 102,502
RAFEBmET A (H59) Charge to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—EEROEEREER ~ Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 2,187 1,362 (19,362) (15,813)
SFAFERNER Charge to equity for the year = 351 = 351
bE 2 F Translation adjustment (2,147) 10 (1,979 (4,116)
120235F12H31H At 31 December 2023 29,366 1,818 51,740 82,924
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17. IRERIBEE @ 17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

LUR s #5345 70 B 2 LR IRASBR AT

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2024 2023

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RIERIEE E Deferred tax assets 63,765 82,924
et - Note:

RAEABEHR 2EEARETEEEREFEN
123,391,000 71 (20234 : 172,272,000 7T) » B &R
HAEIREEEBEN AT NRKEREREHN A&
(& 36 8 S R B A A AR TS 48 (20234 © 4,288,0007 7T)
B AEREE PR EERIBEEE42,908,000
7T (20234 © 8,146,000/ 7T) BN =FE R B HI L
Bt B E AR E R 18 4964,196,0004 7T (20234
91,986,000/ 7t) # 7 + 5 A E #A > A] 3 84 5k 2R FE o8
MiEH - MNEBNBAT RN BAZTURRB 4K
BARAEAZREEBBEHIRIZELERIBEEED
#9115,986,0005 75 (20234 : 162,262,000 7T)
#91,329,0007% 7T (20234 : 1,329,000 75) UK A
54,733,000 7T (20234F : 75,258,000 7T) ° 7k T~
REE (BEEE BB EMMBAREEZ
RIBEE) M= HRNZERE R RARKRAIEESE
FERRE M F LUK SH TR IB RS 18 > B ok T AR SR AR IEAR
HEFE o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$123,391,000 (2023:
HK$172,272,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also had no tax losses arising in the PRC (2023:
HK$4,288,000) that will expire in five years, tax losses arising in
Macau of approximately HK$2,908,000 (2023: HK$8,146,000)
that will expire in three years and tax losses arising in Japan of
approximately HK$64,196,000 (2023: HK$91,936,000) that will
expire in ten years for offsetting against future taxable profits,
respectively. Deferred tax assets have been recognised for tax
losses arising from a subsidiary in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$115,986,000 (2023: HK$162,262,000), from a subsidiary in
Macau of approximately HK$1,329,000 (2023: HK$1,329,000) and
from subsidiaries in Japan of approximately HK$54,733,000 (2023:
HK$75,258,000). Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses, including the tax losses arising
from the other subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and Japan, as it is
not probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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18. & 18. INVENTORIES

2024 2023
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
A E N & Merchandise for sale 930 1,313

19. ESEIER 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 EWER Trade receivables 14,203 10,570
B B Less: loss allowance (417) (335)
BRERE Net carrying amount 13,786 10,235

REBEEZERAANGBEERER RRSHER &

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of

EEEBESEWE NREEES) RS DU loss allowance) as at the end of the reporting period, based
B on invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2024 2023

FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 - 90k 0 - 90 days 13,562 9,284

91 - 180X 91 - 180 days 220 4

181 — 365k 181 — 365 days 4 947

13,786 10,235
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19.

B RIWER @

AEEGGATEZEAEERNER BES
10REOR - RIFEIH B RINFRE IR » A&
BB 5 U AR FNFRERZER) HIRE DI :

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of loss
allowance), based on due date and net of loss allowance, is
as follows:

2024 2023

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

=) > 380 HA Not yet past due 10,495 9,675

BA=1EH AR
BARBE =EA BN

Past due within three months 3,287 557
Past due more than three months but

ANEN=RYEN within six months = 3

A EAREE 7B B E R Past due more than six months but
—F R within one year 4 _
13,786 10,235

—RME > ZEBL T FREFA ERER
S H S A ReE

rEREERAEBMBREERBSRMLERE
HESBWIRERAFRANBHREEHERERFR
SFERHEEER REHAERPEESR
BEZBUCRBEBEELUNEER B KRREETD
48 o

FREEXDRESEBRBARIN=ZFANE
EEEERTHFESH - BRERFELER
ERNEBCERRNER KA E R E
CHEBEXETHE AEERBEREEBERE
EERXEEATEREFMERRNEIER
BICERZR -

In general, the Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECLs using a lifetime ECL provision for trade
receivables. To measure ECLs on a collective basis, trade
receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk and
ageing.

The expected loss rates are based on the Group’s historical
credit losses experienced over the 3 year period prior to the
period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the Group’s customers. The Group has
identified the gross domestic product (GDP) and inflation rate
as the key macroeconomic factors in the countries where the
Group operates.
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19. BSEWER @

TXEIFTEBEZRURERRFHEERZE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continuea)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

ERRER exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision
matrix:
122024FE12H831H As at 31 December 2024
Past due
DR30KX 31XE60KX 61KEINK HBiE0K 4t
Lessthan 31 daysto 61 daysto Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 90 days Total
BHREERIEX ECL rate 2.7% 18.8% - 73.3% 2.9%
REREE (FAT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 14,087 101 - 15 14,203
HEIEERE (T ECLs (HK$'000) 387 19 - 11 417
722023512831 H As at 31 December 2023
%61 HA
Past due
DHRB0K  31KRE60XK 61KEIK HBBI0K s
Lessthan 31 daysto 61 daysto QOver
30 days 60 days 90 days 90 days Total
HHEEREX ECL rate 2.8% 32.9% 55.6% 80.0% 3.2%
REREE (FAT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 10,461 76 18 15 10,570
HEEEEE (TET) ECLs (HK$'000) 288 25 10 12 335

B RREGEREGNESERNT

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade

receivables is as follows:

2024 2023

TFET TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

R1B1H At 1 January 335 =
FAEH Net loss allowance recognised

iR P ER during the year 82 335

R12831H At 31 December 417 335
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20.

T8 TR LR

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

2024 2023
TET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ERTEE Non-current assets
HE= Deposits 1,739 1,301
FETRR Prepayments 158 534
1,897 1,835

MENEE Current assets

HAE R Other receivables 9,966 11,923
& (Wat) Deposits (note) 5,378 5,331
SEENEN Prepayments 82,765 57,996
98,109 75,250

S RHMBYREEASBET S RHERE]

Mt ZEROEINT - REAEQRADARETHEE
5% 492,019,000 7t (20234 : 1,803,0007#
TT) °© #%5] 54y BRI~ % B R AN AE B JE O B
o

B

o

il

FE] SR EMBEWRERTS @ BERZERE B 1R ER
BHEDSS T _ERRBEERE BRAEET
HEEERRESREEM -ARESERKRAE
MIFERURE T RER MU KRGS RAES
BEEF ARBEFEERELENBR X5
HFNUBHRR RXZHFEETERNRKAR
DU &5 0B R B TR A A T E R B 20R (W08
B WEERERETEHERMGHENEE
BN R U R EEEORFAIEE

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers.

Note: The amount included rental deposits paid to a related
company, Great Port, of approximately HK$2,019,000 (2023:
HK$1,803,000). The amount due is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable at the end of the rental periods.

For deposits and other receivables, loss allowance is
recognised as 12-month ECL since initial recognition and
subsequently the Group assesses whether there was a
significant increase in credit risk. When determining whether
the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating the ECL, the directors of
the Company have taken into account the historical default
experience, the financial position of the counterparties, the
future prospects of the industries in which the counterparties
operate as well as various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating
the probability of default occurring within their respective loss
assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default.
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20, §Ts ~ FEITHUR L A FEUKER 20.

REER HMEWIR DR DL T 2R EFEE

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Other receivables are categorised into the following stages

by the Group:

12024%F12831H As at 31 December 2024
+=ER
TBHAE SR8 ERANBREESE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F—RE FREEL B Wzt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
H e R 42 58 Other receivables, gross 10,114 33 415 10,562
B EMERERZ Less: loss allowance on
EEEE other receivables (180) ) (415) (596)
Hth eI AR F %8 Other receivables, net 9,934 32 = 9,966
BHEEHREX ECL rate 1.8% 3.0% 100%
R2023FE12831H As at 31 December 2023
+-@ER
TBHEEEE FRABREERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F—REE B PR =R 4mEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FET FAT FAT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hth eI AR 4B %8 Other receivables, gross 11,954 184 714 12,852
W HthERER Y Less: loss allowance on
BiEER other receivables (394) ) (529) (929)
HAhpE iR F 58 Other receivables, net 11,560 178 185 11,923
BHREEHEE ECL rate 3.3% 3.3% 74.1%
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20.

21.

51 E - FAI B HEUWER @ 20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continuea)

HtEWREIEEENESSE LA T Movement in the loss allowance in respect of other
receivables is as follows:

2024 2023

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R181H At 1 January 929 =
FARRERIEMEWERE 2 Net (reversal of allowance)/allowance for
FEREEEE (EEEE) ECLs on other receivables recognised

M FRR during the year (333) 929

R12831H At 31 December 596 929

IRIFIRITERUBRITIERMRETFIR  21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT

S BANKS AND ON HAND
2024 2023
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEN Cash at banks 171,070 219,525
EFRE Cash on hand 8,468 10,655
179,538 230,180
A IRIRERITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (10,296) (10,240)

REPTERRFTRZ Cash at banks and on hand per

RTEFNEFRSE consolidated statement of financial position 169,242 219,940
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m.g#ﬁﬁﬁﬁu&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
#)

FEENREERREEEBYEEENRSHIRT
ERAEXZZEHHXGENRITERMZBE
THHBANES EWEHRTER  1K20245F12
B31H > HEFMENF0.3%ZE3.3% (20234 :
0.25%%E5.1%) » REHARAR A =/ A AR ©

R2024F 12831 H AEBE TRITERD
10,296,00078 7t (20234 : 10,240,000 7T) i 38
MIRIT FEERARREAEBRNETE=FE
BEREIIERY R A EBRITTERBER-

22, BSREMER

BERMENGEENRBREIRAMHEEREMDN
HERMAR BEBIREIOKR - RIBERBNE
mAVERS EBEREZEH - - NERERAKR
FEHEZEMRNREDTMT -

21.

22.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND ON HAND (Continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
pank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.3% to 3.3% (2023: 0.25% to 5.1%) per annum as at
31 December 2024, with an original maturity of three months
or less.

As at 31 December 2024, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$10,296,000 (2023:
HK$10,240,000) were pledged to banks as securities mainly
for letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on
behalf of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of
the Group.

TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and
goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the
ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

2024 2023

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

0- 90K 0 - 90 days 43,034 36,096
91 - 180K 91 — 180 days 1,434 1,071
181 — 365K 181 — 365 days 728 247
BiB365K Over 365 days 438 126
45,634 37,540
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23.

24.

FEStRIE R HL B (AR

23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2024 2023
FAT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE =T FRIE Accrued expenses 23,834 21,185
HhpETER Other payables 33,962 34,022
57,796 55,207
=S )ERE 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2024 2023
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHNBEEEER: Contract liabilities arising from:
IR IEABRA 275 Travel Related Business
—RITE - BEHITERK — Sales of package tours, FIT Products
RITHERERHEES and travel related products 135,773 127,353
— B EE — Loyalty programme 461 =
L ETE Hotel Business 378 553
EEREEE Sale of Merchandises Business - 81
136,612 127,987
HENBaBeBEERTE s — BRI MERAOT Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:
@) JREERIETE (a) Travel Related Business
) FEITIE ~ B H1TE SR IRTTIEE E i ()  Sales of package tours, FIT Products and
THE travel related products
SHNBEARKRAREIRHERFER L Contract liabilities represent advance payments
EREEREENAERERL R ILE received from customers for services that have
R ZIEMN not yet been performed to the customers or the
control of the products have not been transferred
to the customers.
AREBEEANR —FEZ NN E R The Group expects to deliver the goods or

RHURBZUBTZES

FEe

HNEBEZEGT services to satisfy the remaining obligations of

these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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24, 9B EE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continuea)

@) IELIERIETS B
(i) EEEE
FEBEBE -BEHESTE ZtE
MKREEBERAE TELARBE
Do AEBMETILEBRANRKME
BEBEIINRTERETHEBERZE
KER W EN 2 BARFEHER
BUERTURIEASHNEE a4
BEREABERRAERARBR
PN H B R A W R o

122024F12H31H > Al = HE KR EIHA
RERESBRZB TEANSENRS
B 4REEA A461,00078 70 (20234 :
ZET)  HRREBESNENRS
241@ B > AEE B 2418 B R %
WA ©

b) BIEEF
GHEERERBE P REASRESE
WERE R Z AR e

AEEBRAR —FRUANRERBUBIT
ZEGNEBRZEG T &EB-
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Travel Related Business (Continued)

(i) Loyalty programme
The Group operates a loyalty programme that
award points to certain customers for Travel
Related Business. The Group determines this
offer represents a material right to purchase
additional package tours or travel related
products in the future two years and recognised
as a contract liability based on the relative stand-
alone price of the performance obligations in
the contract. The contract liability recognises as
revenue when the customer redeems it for goods
or services or when it expires.

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation in connection
to the unexpired award points is approximately
HK$461,000 (2023: HK$NIl) and the Group will
recognise this revenue within 24 months as the
award points are effective for 24 months.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for hotel services that have
not yet been rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the
remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within
one year or less.
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24.

25.

S48 E ® 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
TRV ENEBE 2B . The table below details movements in contract liabilities:
2024 2023
FAET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M1B1H At 1 January 127,987 100,887
REBAANEEWT GTAEL Decrease in contract liabilities as
aHad) memaiastz a result of recognising revenue
b during the year that was included in the
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (120,991) (85,898)
AXRFEEESNBEMSHK Decrease in contract liabilities as
aHaE/LD a result of contract modification
in the current year (5,367) (13,149)
&I hfR 20 48 B8] 2= 75 B A [k 22 75 Increase in contract liabilities as
AW (FEERAEE a result of billing in advance of
ERERAWRZEB) mak Travel Related Business and Hotel
BHaEZEN Business, excluding those recognised as
revenue in the current year 134,983 126,147
12H31H At 31 December 136,612 127,987
RITER 25. BANK BORROWINGS
2024 2023
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wikl Current
RITE BT Bank borrowings, secured 61,115 31,108
JERE Non-current
RITE BT Bank borrowings, secured 208,355 281,901
269,470 313,009
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25. tR1TET @& 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

R20248FE12831H 2 £9269,470,00078 7T (2023
£F 1 313,009,000 75) BUERTT &R TH 2 Bl LAABBR
HE{B#352,434,0007& 7t (20234 : 397,464,000
BIo) (MizE14) K494,317,0005 7T (20234 :
1,909,000%7T) (Misk21) NETYE - BE &R
HERIERRITERIEIR IR o Lo B—KEH &K
BABIN—AI R R 2 X FIE R R
TERENRFENTHELE o It > 0 5 1E3% 17
BE (FR2023F 128318 : 2,787,000/ 7T) ©

BITERD AR AR BE (REEENESEE
5 A) 3t > H ik IR B BRI A A

o

RITERERBRKBBERENZF1.34%E1.60%
(20234F : 0.79%E1.67%) 1k A 5T & o

REBRSHR  RITERRER TXFAREEE
HREE

As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$269,470,000 (2023: HK$313,009,000)
were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment and pledged bank deposits with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$352,434,000
(2023: HK$397,464,000) (note 14) and approximately
HK$4,317,000 (2023: HK$1,909,000) (note 21) respectively.
In addition, bank borrowings secured by a property of a
former non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary in Japan
were fully repaid during the year. As such there was no
asset pledged in this regard (as at 31 December 2023:
HK$2,787,000).

The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest rate of 1.34% to
1.60% (2023: 0.79% to 1.67%) per annum.

At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings
were scheduled to repay as follows:

2024 2023

F#ET AT

DWWMT EEE) - Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’000
—FRPBEX Within one year or on demand 61,115 31,108
—F U EFBBERE Over one year, but within two years 50,094 28,368
MEMU EBARABBEE Over two years, but within five years 65,524 134,349
EEME Over five years 92,737 119,184
269,470 313,009

Wi BRESESE R R BRAT R AR R R
BRI
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Note: The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are
based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
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25. IRITIER @& 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

R2024E 12831 BIRITEFZFBHY W T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2024 are

stated below:

i3 Gl ERHR
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
THET
HK$’'000

N BEHENER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 128414 FHXH=ERH AR+_FR
RRBIRERS fBiE

_E1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
W BEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 121,056 FHE[/=@ALHE  BRZT ER
RRBOTFERES g

i0£0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+ 0.5% per annum
LUABTEHENER Loan denominated in HK$ 20,000 FHERAH—EBH BR=1TRA
BERTAERS B

E1.5%
1-month HIBOR Payable within
+1.5% per annum 30 days
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25. IRITE @ 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

P2023FE 12831 HIEITEZZFFHYU T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 are

stated below:

A% GlES B
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$’000

HEBFENER Loan denominated in JPY 169,184 FRXH=(EAH AR+ ZER
HRFITEZERE B8

ME1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
UBEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 2,787 Bl FHI%E1.5% ERLERN
Fixed rate Payable within
1.5% per annum 5 years
MEBHENER Loan denominated in JPY 141,088 FAEXH=(EAH AR+ ER
HRRITEZERS B

M£0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+0.5% per annum

E4id 7 Effect of covenants

AREENIERBIRTEREIEEE%4128,414,000
BT (20234 : 169,184,000/ 7T) WIERR > %%
EREERE MERERaRERE BRF
BREREBE UHEARDEGR ZEBN
BRBREHRBI2EA U LEE - ZLYBTE -
1) ZAB B2 EN B /ABEbisu Growth Limited
FEEEMEFEHIR FEE &2) Ebisu Growth
LimitedMEEFENBEEMESNEHE R
2024512831 H > AEE T & AR 2024F12 5 31
BT & REE o NAIRSH R B BESTHEZHE L
N ER2024F 12331 HiGAERAER D EAR
FIEREN ©

174 S=5FEERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Group’s non-current bank borrowings include
borrowings amounting to HK$128,414,000 (2023:
HK$169,184,000) that contain covenants, which, if not
met, would result in the borrowings becoming repayable on
demand and classified as current liabilities. These borrowings
are otherwise repayable in more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. The covenants require 1) Ebisu
Growth Limited, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, shall not incur a net loss for two consecutive
years; and 2) the net assets of Ebisu Growth Limited must be
above JPY 0 for two consecutive years. As at 31 December
2024, the Group complied with the covenants that were
required to be met on 31 December 2024. The covenants
that are required to be complied with after the end of the
current reporting period do not affect the classification of the
related borrowings as current or non-current at 31 December

2024.
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26.

27.

Bm

R2024F K2023F12H31H > st BANEEY
¥ ZBEMAFMIEHNES  NIREREGRDRR
HAERNEEZHEYEZEHRE R ING
SRS o 3 BRI 1B 5 B BT A 5 A HR A4S SR By

26. PROVISION

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was a provision
for reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan,
which relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease term

EEMRATR- in accordance with the lease terms. The main uncertainty
relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end
of the lease term.

fgZs 27. SHARE CAPITAL

£ ¢S] 3B
Number Amount
T FET
000 HK$’000

ETE Authorised

TR EEO. 18712 ZEK Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

R2023F181H ~2023F K& At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023

2024%E12831H and 2024 1,000,000 100,000
B 3B
Number Amount
T FET
000 HK$’000

BERTABEZEBER Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid

122023F181H ~2023F & At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023

2024F12831H and 2024 502,450 50,245
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28. f#f#&

AEERBEESH ZFFHRNGERDESHRA-
BEANREEEERENOT

BRI #@E
FEBRND GERERQATETROPIERIE
BRAATBEETRMEEZRD

=]
FEBGHFEFRERHNBATD ZREREEL
EENBRARNERTRAEEZFENERE

BARA

BARARAEREERT ST X ERE QT W
NEBMEXBENEEMER/NF @ BRAFS
Dﬁ/ F‘FEM—JDISA‘( )

SHE

AEBNIIERBEAEBINEFTRBEQT
RERB2INEBHEREZE -
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28. RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Capital Contribution

Capital contribution represented benefits received by the
Group arising from the differences between market interest
rates and preferential interest rates charged by a related
company. Please refer to note 34(b) for detail.

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.
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28. {#fE = 28. RESERVES (Continued)

A E 1
AEBYEZERBEHRERMAEMAIN —RE
R AR RREIRTTH CRPI) ARAB L

RIFBRPI (IR ) 37715 B AR AR E R
Do5% B RMIER EAEHEE  BEEREETZ
NEIBEA50% I 7K 0 12024 K 2023512 8
1B AEHEEINB AR RAMNS50% 2ok
BRI RIED K

RIEFREABE  RRERITH (R BRAE
(RAEFMRILZHBAR) BREEEER
BEF (CIREATFEBER) BE10%EEE
RET BEiEHESRBEIEEAMELDN
50%FF B EBER SIEHE— T BE LA EH
HEr ARIEHE BT EESISTIEMEMES-
R ZELCEREBETNEHREDRBRERE
BT M B AR AI50% 7K F o & E2023F 125
31HIEFE  RRERITH CFRII) BRA S B
EEAEER o B E2024F 12831 HIEEE » W AL
FEFEMRERN (KEHEBATEEFBR) &
HEAERBE

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
there was no profit generated by EGL Tours (Shenzhen)
Company Limited. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
there was no annual statutory net profit after taxation (after
offsetting the prior years' losses) to the statutory reserve
fund.

202443  Annual Report 2024 177



BA#53R3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMBRERNE

i (3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

29.

178

FERetEStE

MBSt 8 (TH5t8))) EnM2024F5831H %
RN > UERA 2014511 513 H SR A BB AL 1
sta) (TEEsta)) -

Mt BT -

BH2024F6B48E > Mt EINB VAR TE 1R
Bt ES2RNBERELENSERSHEE
WRTEEREFHBBERRRMHNELN 17
FEEEEDATII=ZERNRSE | () =27
RONREADEEBREZ ZX B AT
B ERFARBRHE (i) ZARRMDIEEZSE
AREEEREZENEPMNAEEXEEH
P B WERFIRAFHRHE ; & (i) ZREK
PEE-

B % H B9 BB B AR IS BB AR 1 B XA 8 P9 & B0 S AR
DEETE CRUBRENTERBHESE
EWPERENR N E AR ARES  EZHE
AEEBRER S BRES +E 2B TR1E
PRIEZIRSGRR

HEtE| BT EERITHN AR RNDBEERZ
5i83850,245,0008& KA B B - BR AL $%4m B H#A

(BP2024F5H31H) A AR BETRMHDEHN
10% ©

RimEERARAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme has been adopted on 31 May
2024 (the “New Scheme”) for the replacement of the share
option scheme adopted on 13 November 2014 (the “Old
Scheme”).

A summary of the New Scheme is set out below:

The New Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 4 June 2024. Under the New Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make
an offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares
of the Company at the exercise price and shall be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of the offer of grant of an option by the Company;
(i) the average closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant of an option by the Company; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share of the Company.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the effective option period. The exercise period of the
options granted is determined and notified by the directors
to the grantee thereof at the time of making an offer provided
that such period shall not exceed the period of 10 years from
the date of the grant of the option is made, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares of the Company that
may be issued under the New Scheme shall not exceed
50,245,000 shares of the Company, being 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption (i.e. 31 May 2024).
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29.

30.

BBRGHEETE

RAFE > EREMENRES I REERE
RE-RBESE BEFETEREBERE-
REESBH BB EARERN 8 REEIRE
BY B AR AT RERE IR (20234 @ L IRIREE St
HERBERE) - BRESERTFRHE AR K
BREBHERRAE LRERIEF] -

BIRETE

rEBEEREERFMEARE ((BREE)) 5t
EIEE BB E B B2000F 1281 EM Z @6l %
AREHERASEB—REBRERTEAE
BraREstE SEAERESHM R
BEstE EXTHREESHEERMARZS%
ZEBZEHR RREESSABEMRARK
F) - S AARMAR LIR#330,0008 7T ° A8 & 51
EINHMARKRE T EREFMA BEEEAAR
EWRETEIRIB L -

REBBRRT RN AEBTAREESREE
ATEFNRETEILEERMA  FREARBEH
FE HAGRINETE]

RAFE AEBSZNEEIEMNEED
6,215,00078 7T ( 20234F : 4,912,000787T) ° A<
RNl IR SHIR A FR o

29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continuea)

During the year, no share options were granted under the
New Scheme and the Old Scheme. Under the Old Scheme,
no share options were granted in preceding years. As at the
reporting date, there were no outstanding options granted
under the New Scheme and the Old Scheme (2023: Nil
under the Old Scheme). Share options do not confer rights
to the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from
1 December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF
Scheme operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong
and makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately. MPF Scheme has attributes of a defined
contribution plan.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$6,215,000 (2023: HK$4,912,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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30.

180

BRINEHE @

FRIE & 5 BB B B2 AR
RiEEBEAFTE(RBIRA)  RIBEGENES
NZEADIGENEEETIER FAERE
HRBE

e (BEMN6EREIIU LA ;
e EENRI(FERBRET;
s REEREBRRREE

o EEMRMERSHHIMAKETN ;

s REBEUFEHRENBREFZTAHMMRE
=

ERBERAN2ZRERE —BEANGE

(EPR%&22,500%ET) MIRBFHEE - S%a
BERREENREIARE SR _ER#4390,0007%
Lo AEEIRERE R EIAZES (LRS!
HHFMEENEE#m ] ARIEHERARS
@A

2022668 » 20224 B 1% BB Rt B AR GE
) (B5T) R4 (MEETRAIL) 1876 « BT
REIBCHERRERGEREEHANRERE
mEPREREESNZHE (TBUEZH) - 2%
EARFEBNERBUEZERR2025F581H
(BEERI) £3%e
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30. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding

Under Employment Ordinance, Cap.57, an employee who
has been employed under a continuous contract for not less
than 5 years of service is eligible for long service payments
(“LSP”) under the following circumstances:

o The employee resigns at age of 65 or above;
o The employee dies during employment;
o The employee resigns on ground of ill health;

° The fixed term employment contract expires without
being renewed;

o The employee is dismissed which is not because of
redundancy or serious misconduct.

The LSP benefit is determined with reference to the
employee’s last full month’s salary (capped at HK$22,500)
and number of years of service. The LSP benefit is capped
at HK$390,000 for each eligible employee. The accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s mandatory contributions
under the MPF scheme in respect of that employee can be
used to offset the LSP benefit.

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (“the Amendment Ordinance”) was enacted. The
Amendment Ordinance abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset LSP (“the Abolition”). Subsequently,
the Government of HKSAR announced that the Abolition will
take effect on 1 May 2025 (“the Transition Date”).
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30.

RIKETE @

FRIEBT BB R R B2 KR ()

UTEZEFHBNEERREER:

s [EIRFIMBREEHMRAMEEZRERT
AR EHEBEHRREREZ R
B o

s BEMZERHBRTGEUREBEHIRRE
—BRZHEE MIFURILEZEBAH
ZRE—ERAZHEHE

RERFBEEE RESER BB E -RAR
B IREHZE B RMIEE4() -

REIRE £

RERFEFEREN AR BERAIARIL
EBERRFIIFSHECHSIRMER  RRFHE
ZHRABERRNURERERES S REMDR
HERRI T 5 AR -

R2024%F 128310 » B B XM 2 IRIK
T EBHERATDRBEEMBUEEREME
AHAEEMNECFENBEETRNBEM
Bo

30. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding
(Continueq)

The following key changes will take effect since the Transition
Date:

° Accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
MPF contributions cannot be used to offset the LSP in
respect of the employment period after the Transition
Date.

° The pre-transition LSP is calculated using the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition
Date, instead of using the last month’s salary of
employment termination date.

The accounting for LSP obligation, MPF contribution and the
MPF-LSP offsetting is detailed in note 4()).

Long service payment

The net long service payment obligations are exposed to
interest rate risk, the risk arising from changes in employees’
average longevity at retirement or termination of employment,
expected rate of future salary increase and market risk
associated with investment returns of employees’ MPF
Scheme.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value
of the net defined benefit obligations was carried out on
31 December 2024 by independent professional valuer,
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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30. BIAEHE @

RAIIRE & (48

RB|BEMARAEANERRBERRAOT -

30. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Long service payment (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

2024

2023

BRI
BEF S MER

Discount rate

Expected rate of salary increase

3.39% - 4.09%

3%

2.96% — 4.79%

3%

R20245F128318 > RMERE S &EH 2 MEF

HEABR A21.214F (20234 :

24 564F) o

RBESHRERBROEESRIED 7 HEW

The weighted average duration of the LSP obligation at
31 December 2024 was 21.21 years (2023: 24.56 years).

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions

T as at the end of the reporting period is shown below:
AE AE
mIEE mAIEE
Eb=sgan g G Eb=E s G
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
TFET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
20245 2024
ALIR = Discount rate 1% (821) 1% 993
RRFEIL R Future salary increase 1% 107 1% (139)
20234 2023
ARIR = Discount rate 1% (400) 1% 700
AERFEEE Future salary increase 1% = 1% -
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30.

RIKETE @

RHIRE & (@)

EABURIE D AT 0 THIRIRRE B R R AL IS AR
LEREBEEFHRHATENEENTEOHELR -
BRUMED T RIBEERRREE)  RFFTA Hth
{RERAHE T T T E o SURK M 73 i AT BE I AN AR
REBMEEZBEREF RAARK A ANFIEE
BREMRRERES-

REBVNBEFEZEEHUWT ¢

30.

STARBRRBRE ST

RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

Long service payment (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based
on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual
change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

The movements in the net defined benefit obligations are as
follows:

AR 2ENEN
Bt/ (B8

Remeasurement gains/(losses)

2024 Long service payment cost charged to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
HBER
21631E8 AR 20245
N4F1B1A  EBBERE  HEERRE  RAR&)H Bt ERE8  2EKE E 12R310
Actuarial
changes Subtotal
arising from included
Current Net Subtotal changes in other
1 January service interest included in Benefit in financial ~ comprehensive 31 December
2024 cost expense  profit or loss paid  assumptions income 2024
Thn Thn Thn Fhn Thn Fhn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERAERRE Net defined benefit obligations (5,653) (1,326) (216) (1,542) 615 (837) (837) (7.417)
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30. B2 @ 30. RETIREMENT SCHEMES (Continued)
RIIRZ = (&) Long service payment (Continued)
SARME AR
SABRNRBREEAA Ef:tEEN/ B

Remeasurement gains/{losses)

2023 Long service payment cost charged to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
FiEfRR
b3l AR 2003
NBEIRIE EBEERE  NEERRE  HABENG Bfi%EH BEEE  ZEWGIG 12A31H
Actuarial
changes Subtotal
arising from included
Current Net Subtotal changes in other
1 January service interest included in Benefit infinancial  comprehensive 31 December
2023 cost expense profit or loss paid assumptions income 2023
T#En TR TER TER T Thn T#En TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERNELEE Net defined benefit obligations (4,560) (819 (159) (978) 245 (370) (370) (5,653)
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31. AT 2B AR HE 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

@ FEREZHEBERRE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2024 2023
K&t TET TETT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current asset
KRB AR 2 HE Investment in a subsidiary 21,899 21,899
TMEEE Current assets
SEENES Prepayments 794 801
& USR5 BR R Amounts due from subsidiaries 34(q) 216 7,586
BT ERREEFERE Cash at banks and on hand 841 1,228
1,851 9,615
mEaE Current liabilities
FESTFRIB R H A FE (T AR Accruals and other payables 8,568 8,933
FEAT AR R Dividend payable 11 - 35,172
E IR I8 Tax payable 8 123
FET Y B A B BR R Amounts due to subsidiaries 34(a) 2,313 1,123
10,889 45,351
mEN B AR E Net current liabilities (9,038) (35,736)
BE /(8 FE Net assets/(liabilities) 12,861 (13,837)
= EQUITY
B Share capital 27 50,245 50,245
R Reserves 31(b) (37,384) (64,082)
ERAEEE (B4t Total equity/(Capital deficiency) 12,861 (13,837)
RKERESFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXHE g il
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITESE
Executive Director Executive Director
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3. AT ZHFRRREAEE @ 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

b) FAE#E

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves of the Company

1Rt E RE R st

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FHET FHET FAET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
722023F181H At 1 January 2023 145,335 (175,111) (29,776)
FEEF Profit for the year = 866 866
YRR E (BaE11) Special dividends (note 11) (35,172) - (35,172)

#2023F12831H & At 31 December 2023 and

2024%F1H1H 1 January 2024 110,163 (174,245) (64,082)
FERH Profit for the year = 26,698 26,698
20244128 31H At 31 December 2024 110,163 (147,547) (37,384)
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32. B AT 32. SUBSIDIARIES
1R2024F 128310 » KRB R F5IH B A 5
EEEYEEED ZERAEAMABREA
) HEEBHHmE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of
which are set out as follows:

Ak,
YNGR R, BEITRATRAR it FEEH
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable
Name of company operations share capital equity interest Principal activities
H# f
Directly  Indirectly
RRBERERRRAH RBETREE 337,008 100% - BRERR
££337,025% 7T
EGL Management Group BVI 337,025 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling United States dollar
(‘US$") 337,025
RRERITHERAR &E 3,315,000 B3@H% > - 100% RERTE BHETEMK
££3,315,000 7T BN MR T AR A 2 o B PR 5
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERITH (BEX) BRAF &E 221 BB - 100% Rt A ARMNHIERITE
Bfto218 T BT Em A E M iRITHER
7 m B k%5
EGL Tours (Japan) Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
Company Limited totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and
services in Japan
RERITHERAS e 550,0008% & &2 - - 100% BEEH
H$550,000 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
totalling HK$550,000
RRBIRTH (RF) BRAT pid 1,800,000 7 - 100% RERTE BETERK
BB IR ITAERE R R IR
EGL Tours (Macau) Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT
Company Limited 1,800,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRBIRATH (RN BRAE) HE BRERE - 100% MAERHEA R R AMIRTE
A #3,850,0007T
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local
Company Limited* (‘RMB”) 3,850,000 package tours in the PRC
RREER (BX) ERAF RBERAREE  100RKM7 - 100% HEZRK
B11,000% 7
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding

totalling US$1,000

20244 %R  Annual Report 2024

187



BA#53R3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AREMBRERNE

i (3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

32.

M AT @@ 32. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
S,
AGIEY gEm e BETRARRE FEfh AL 1E TEEH
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable
Name of company operations share capital equity interest Principal activities
E# A
Directly  Indirectly
B &ttZipang. S. S* (TZipangs)  HZA& 475RR B 17 > - 80% It H ARk B TR
H1£23,750,000H
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S** Japan 475 shares Provision of travel bus services in
(“Zipang”) totalling JPY23,750,000 Japan
FREER @) ERAF RBERRES  1008KAD - 100% HEZLR
H1,000E7T
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
R R BEERFRAH HEEARKEE  1008RKMH - 100% HELK
AH100ET
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$100
EGL Market Company Limited 58 1REER = 100% REERZEM
af1ET
EGL Market Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of goods in Hong Kong
totalling HK$1
EXSERARAH HEMAARRE 1RERMD - 100% HEER
CESE
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding
totalling US$1
EXSREARAH s 1REEk - 100% HEER
af1ET
Ebisu Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
Company Limited totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited** BA BRERE - 100% %A BERESRRERE
10,000,000H
Ebisu Growth Limited™ Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
East Global Limited*™ BA& BAERA - 100% #%A BERLERFBE
10,000,000H
East Global Limited*™ Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
®RiE 7 (BF) EBERAH HBERREE 1RRM - 100% HELK
EEEST
EGL Trading (Japan) Group BVI 1 share Investment holding

Company Limited

totalling US$1
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32.

33.

34.

MtEBAT @ 32. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ML,
REIATE 4TS 3 2 BEITRAERAE Ak FBEH
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable
Name of company operations share capital equity interest Principal activities
B# ik
Directly  Indirectly
RREEZ (BE) BRAF &E 1 E R - 100% AREARZERREEERS
EI 7 \1 ;%TD
EGL Trading (Japan) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Provision of handling services for
Company Limited totalling HK$1 trading of goods in Japan
EGL Holdings (HK) Limited RBEAREE 1RRMD - 100% BEEH
CEAE
EGL Holdings (HK) Limited BVI 1 share Inactive
totalling US$1
EGL JV Investment Limited REABRHE 1RRMD - 100% HBEER
RV
EGL JV Investment Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding

* D E Ry HEEN il
o EXREERER

# BPBEREMNII EEERE

REE2024F12831HIEEE >

B EE AL

BEM B AR N REMARBITERAREES

E[Z2 g4
I 22 AR e

1,700,000 7t (20234 : 2,263,0007& 7T)

ZipangfE (G IEIZERR RS ©

ZM B RABRIFIERE

FRERRS

MRAiGEMBERRNEMIBD
ETZRBUWT .

R AEERIN - BARREE S

MR AL AEK

totalling US$1

1L 5T B B

33.

BEFEN2024F128318 B
"H%

34.

PERBERBEZRS

*

Chinese name for identification purpose only

English name for identification purpose only

w registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the
PRC law

*x

There was no newly incorporated subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The net liabilities of non-controlling interests as at
31 December 2024 were approximately HK$1,700,000
(2023: HK$2,263,000) which were attributable to the non-
controlling interest of Zipang.

The non-controlling interests of the subsidiary are considered
to be immaterial.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions were carried out with related parties:
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34. FAEARXS &

@ KREFEEAMELLS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions during the

year
2024 2023
ior=3 FTHET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
SO TFHEEARZEE Rental paid to a related company
—KRET — Great Port (i 10,815 9,022
HEASEREEN Interest expense incurred on loans
FEBEE from a related company
— KRBT - Great Port (i) 7,812 17,988
m—XEEATIRMIKITE .  Provision of package tours, FIT
BHRTERKEERT Products and ancillary travel
HEER KR related products and services
to a related company
—KE1T - Great Port (i) 235 215
FIRMHRITE - BHRTEMK  Costs charged by associates
B M IRITAERE E R R AR TS regarding the provision of package
HEE ARUWNE 2 & B tours, FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and services
—EGLH4E - EGL Okinawa (i) 5,677 753
—EGLERE - EGL Korea (i) 19,964 15,764
—BRE — Niti Niti Travel (i) 231 768
FLBIE KL H & Costs charged by related party
HEER W &R regarding the sale of hotel material
—Hush Home Hong Kong - Hush Home Hong Kong
Limited Limited (i), (i) 9 44
EmEE Costs charged by an associate
HEE ARUWEZ &R regarding the sale of merchandises
=12 — Nissay - 812
ERTHENT—HE Loans to an associate — Nissay — 800
BHE A RIWEERFE Loan interest received from an
—HE& associate — Nissay - 25
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34. FERRS @&
6 REFEEBEABELLS @
Wit :
() SN FRAEARZHERAZINERER

BREPRESAEREREARDRIZEE
ek IR TR ETT

R

RERZDERE L EE ZFRET

(i)

(i) FZHRABHARTDRITESHEREZLEE
BEHA

TRABDATEEREE -BAE REEM
FULRARETZEFTHAEAETZ
RiE-S—UATEEFRREBLINAESE
EMBARETZIRER-

R EXFIIREEN REFRUELFE
RAEMBFE > A2 8 8 AR I & A S8R
BIIUBARREFEAEARDZEE

PAN
540

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(if) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

(i) The company is wholly held by the daughter of the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Huen.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen,
Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors
and have equity interests in Great Port. Another
executive director, Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, became the
shareholder of Great Port during the year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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34. FAERRXS @&

b) FIELEE

192

R2024%F12831H  2RBEERAB ZER
BN AETHME (2023F : =%) B
R =EEHFBEWTFIM

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Loans from a related company

Loans from a related company represented two loans
(2023: three) due to Great Port as at 31 December
2024. The details of the three loans were shown as

below:
BHRURRERE
Contractual
B BRiRENE & REEFEH IES undiscounted
Loan Loan Principal Final Interest cash flows
number drawdown date amount repayment date rate 2024 2023
FHT FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
1 2020838 27H 80,000 2026F151H RE 80,000 80,000
27 March 2020 1 January 2026 Interest free
2 2020588 27H 80,000 20261 818> RE 15,000 80,000
27 August 2020 1 January 2026* Interest free
3 2021£E11 529 80,000 2026F1 818  FHMXH—EAH - 40,000
BARITEAERE
E1.65%

29 November 2021

* NEEP2024F78118 ~ 202458813
H20249826H 20244108228 &
2024F11 228 DBl AAETIRATEER
B 74 £15,000,0007% 7t ~ 15,000,000
7%~ 5,000,000% 7T ~ 15,000,000 7Tt &
15,000,000 73 ©

= KREER2023FE LK R20245E3526
H 202448258 ~2024%5827H &
2024F6821B D RAAEITRAIE R
B A $40,000,00038 7T ~ 10,000,000
7t~ 10,000,000 7% ~ 10,000,0007 75 &
10,000,000 7 ©

RimEERARAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

1 January 2026**

*x

One-month HIBOR
plus 1.65% per
annum

The Group made early repayments of the principal
of the loan in the amount of HK$15,000,000,
HK$15,000,000, HK$5,000,000, HK$15,000,000
and HK$15,000,000 to Great Port on 11 July 2024,
13 August 2024, 26 September 2024, 22 October
2024 and 22 November 2024 respectively.

The Group made early repayments of the principal of
the loan in the amount of HK$40,000,000 in 2023 and
HK$10,000,000, HK$10,000,000, HK$10,000,000
and HK$10,000,000 to Great Port on 26 March
2024, 25 April 2024, 27 May 2024 and 21 June 2024
respectively.
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34. FERRZ ®@ 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
© EEZEBASZFH (c) Compensation of key management personnel
KEE EFREMETEEIEAE Z 5N The remuneration of directors and other members of
me key management during the year was as follows:
2024 2023
TFHT TETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ZHiEE | Short-term employee benefits 22,500 22,058
BEE BB A Post-employment benefits 408 394
22,908 22,452
@) [EYTETHTE L\ Gl AR 2 75 1 HE #F (d) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
BEREHEKEE unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
35. BAHKiE 35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
EHAERNEEYX BEELENEREX Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure of
ZENREENT acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the Group

are as follows:

2024 2023

TFHET TFET

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHESEES 2T Contracted but not provided for 4,881 912
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36.

194

BExEREE
AEECESEREEEE

@ HERAEEFEKEZED UFEBRR
RAVE O3k Ko 2 HAth =50 & 2K M a5

b) XFHAEENRERER; KR

© mMRAEERREEENRIES-

FEERBEDRESTRREFTNGE FBER
Bt BAEN RtEEREABMNELR
RBERBEIERER S Rl AE AR I EE
ERER LURFREAGHENRRERERIER
KF e REBMERAKBEMNENREB R

AERBEEEAGHE  LRBEER TSR
HREEZ ARG REHETHE - BERF IR
BEAER AEERRKVRRZKRE SEIFLH
AE -ORREEES BITHR - WEEHN
HEBELURI(E

RimEERARAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows and capital expenditures, and potential strategic
investment opportunities. The Group does not currently
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.



EE IR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024%12H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

36. ExEMREE ® 36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
120244F %2023F 12 331 HA B EFS B IS SR 1 The net debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2024 and
HEEERWTF ¢ 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023

FHT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

&% (H1a2()) Debt (note() 407,521 544,215
BRI ERREGFRE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (169,242) (219,940)
BE Net debt 238,279 324,275
R et (B aE(i) Equity (note(i) 98,034 47,408
FEGHRRERLLE Net debt-to-equity ratio 243% 684%

Mt -

(i)

(i

EHOERTER AEaARMEADER
HE1E5 BIR A I 525 15R34(0) o

REEDEIERA A RBER AEMGRE R
o

Notes:

(i) Debt comprised bank borrowings, lease liabilities and loans

from a related company as detailed in notes 25, 15 and 34(b)

respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.
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37. EREEIE

FEFETAEEFBETERENX - EE R
B INERE EFEEHEEUADTREIE
EMEEFEBFEE SRR (BEFNEK
SNEEXRBLEEAET)  FERABRABES
B —fRME > AEE 5L AR E EREUFRT R
B o

@ FIEEfE
AEEERSHERTERAELNTER
phkREEBIRITERMEENREREZ
) = & B o

7220234 » ) Z 3= #A A LA o & B 3 BB 2K
A& BB E 255 o 7R2028F12H31
B> FIZ=g B EIH - B, £2024F12 5 31
HIEFE > AEBIEMN LB o B
BRIERMERE AEBESIAEAE
EIRITERRENFIER R RAE KXo
A AEBEEERYEREFNERR
WA R A R ERERBEHE AN ZEE

AEBERITEGRBNIRITEERNIRTS
BRHERSMARHEEREBZFERER
AEBEER R AEREEAIRITERT
RKERBEAEKR > EHENERIRITERE
R EBEREIAEE-
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign

currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s

business. The board of directors meets periodically to

analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s

exposure to market risk (including principal changes in

interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and

liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative

strategy regarding risk management.

@

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 20283, interest rate swap was employed
to hedge exposures or to modify the interest rate
characteristics of the Group's borrowings. As at 31
December 2023, the interest rate swap was matured.
The Group did not have an interest rate hedging policy
for the year ended 31 December 2024. The directors
of the Group consider the Group's exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank borrowings is not significant
as the applicable interest rates are currently low.
However, management of the Group closely monitors
its interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors
of the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.
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37. HFEERERE @

@

(e

FI 2 i (48

fiel FI) Z R SR 38 10 IR 5% i P A E Ath =]
BHRNRRITAL A AEBRNFERT
BN L (20234 @ #ngEL) RR
BB R AR N R /L 49221,00078 7T (2023
F . RetEEED 3% 02,755,000 7T) ©
BREZ NS HE RN EMIBORER
% o

MR LENBEETHFRNEE MERS

PSR I
EEREfE

EERBE—BEMIAZXZHFESR
EERTEEZBRITESETHAER SN
MBERZ AR -

rEETRCESEERREERENE
EEEBRETARARTEE ERNVRK
SRRz EMEEZREE (W
37(fikt) o

FEMBEHRERE 5 K H MU ER LU R
EXEERBREEET FEBRKRAEERA
EAENRZZHEFREREEBLUSHZ
REZHEFEHSIRZEAEREER R &
EBRZIRTEBREHNEE R PEK
BAREZRITo

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(@

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 5% at the beginning of the year and all other
variables were held constant, would increase or
decrease (2023: increase or decrease) the Group’s
profit for the year and increase or decrease retained
earnings by approximately HK$221,000 (2023:
decrease or increase accumulated losses by
approximately HK$2,755,000). The assumed changes
have no impact on the other components of equity.

The increase or decrease by 5% represents directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the end of next reporting
period.

Crediit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
37(f).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Japan.
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37. BHEREEIE @

b 1FERLE @
BRKREITIRBIEZ B 5 B IR R Eth
BWRZE—TWEDRHNWE19R
20°

MEWRERR RBEARRMRIINZE
EERE R 16PTIRBENER THER
SN BN R B FERACRRE RV
KRR *EREEARNXZHFER
BRYSIRZ2FEERAREBER  BstA~EE T
CRREFERRNBMSEEEREE-

FEENREIEFRNEERKFZEM
W WA EERRTEEREERR-

REFE AEE-HETZEEEHR
BRERREERBR -

© FHExERE
RBET AR RAEREIETHESR
ReNHMMEREELESTMAafERz
SEMELEMNERE -

FEREARERREERRESEYNE
BEERRRRZKT  BEEEEERM
B kERRERERFZZE-

rEBZHERBERERRARERRE
PR APEETBR - cEBZRABES
TEHBEEREREEEBRENEBZMA
DETHEHEFE ARTERFEES
RBERFE FEEEBRRABELER
Bz hAEARNEERE ULIRTER
ERRBETHNETERR  EAREEESN

g2 g Kk
?Wmﬁfé\'ﬁéﬁ °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(@)

Further disclosures regarding trade receivables and
other receivables, which are neither past due nor
impaired, are provided in note 19 and 20 respectively.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts due
from a related company and an associate, except for
the loans to an associate as disclosed in note 16, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. As the Group
has sustained net current liabilities, the Group relies
on internally generated funds and credit facilities from
a related company and bank borrowings as significant
sources of liquidity to enable the Group to operate as a
going concern.
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37. HFEERERE @

©

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

B EZEfE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TREYBRESHALAEFBIETESHERE The following tables show the remaining contractual
RERGERESEARE (BHFEUESLNF X maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
DIERE BERIRTAIZE UFE) FristE8F Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
BEAH) SENFGREOE R BB ARE undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
EE AN A= computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:
ARRER —FNR —ENE RENL
FOE RersAE FREX BFEBME EFBRLE RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying undiscounted oron but within but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
THm THm TH® Thm THm Thm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2024
ik Non-derivatives:
BARAER Trade payables 45,634 45,634 45,634 - - -
RSt B R AL IR Acoruals and other payables 57,19 57,19 57,19 - - -
{2 ARRT Amounts due to associates 3,071 3,071 3,071 - - =
BEARER Loans from a related company 90,544 95,000 - 95,000 - -
RITER Bank borrowings 269,470 287,620 64,110 52,513 69,774 101,223
HEAR Lease liabilties 47,507 49,018 40,833 4,964 3,221 -
514,022 538,139 211,444 152,477 72,995 101,223
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37. BHEREEIE @

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

© TEELEZE @ (c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
BRRER MR —FNUE WENL
REE RenSLH IREX ErEBmE BREALE RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted oron but within but within Over
amount cash flows demand two years five years five years
TERL TERL TERL TER THL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2023
ik Non-derivatives:
BREMR Trade payables 87,540 37,540 37,540 - - -
et AR At fTER Accruals and other payables 55,207 55,207 55,207 = = =
RS Dividend payable 35,172 35,172 35,172 - - -
FERBEATR Amounts due to associates 2,323 2,323 2,323 = = =
BEARER Loans from a related company 182,741 200,000 - - 200,000 -
RITER Bank borrowings 313,009 331,648 34,401 31,503 141,032 124,712
fEGR Lease liabilties 48,465 50,670 40,799 5,050 4,821 -
674,457 712,560 205,442 36,553 345,853 124,712
@) SRR (d)  Foreign currency risk

SNERBIE-—EERMIAZAREBEINHA
ARARER & 88 [ S B B =R B4 8 T 3% 4 O B
Z LR o

7S B K 2 A IS R B o 5% 5 R B 2Rk B LI
AEBEBNINESER 2 EKIRMHIRT
“ERTEM REES TR e
RITHBAERKRRBESE 2 W > IR
B S B & S B0 A S B R AR 75 =~ BR 5 AR
Ko RARERE » REMMAI48.4% (20235
44.2%) 7 A% 490.7% (20234 : 1.3%)
ZWEMIEAEEERENINEEK 2 Gk
FHE
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Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours, FIT Products, travel bus services,
ancillary travel related products and services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and ancillary hotel related services in currencies
other than the Group entities’ functional currency.
Approximately 48.4% (2023: 44.2%) of costs and
approximately 0.7% (2023: 1.3%) of the Group’s
revenue are denominated in currencies other than the
Group entities’ functional currency for the year.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(@

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the Group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2024 2023
THT FHB7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets

H JPY 74,601 63,755
AR RMB 9,274 8,626
83,875 72,381

afE Liabilities
H JPY 10,047 10,676
AR RMB 1,690 699
11,737 11,375
SR EFE BB RIS FE R ~ 2 H5h 55 R The management monitors foreign currency exposure
SNERM EIEELSEIRE B rEES by closely monitoring the movements of foreign

REBEHIESB ZINERR -

RIS T E RN EED
BAEERBRPIT 2 INEE R REA o

currency rates. The management has set up a policy
to require the group entities to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their respective functional
currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.

20244 %  Annual Report 2024 201



BA#53R3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12531 LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2024

37. BAF5E
@

=R @

S E R ()
TREVIRNEAEENBRERREKZEKR
Rgz MEER SRR REEH) KAEE
ZEEBFNKRFRBRT, (RsHEE BAm
BEZBOEH - WREDTEEUET
HEHMEEE ZIINERENEER
AR ZERER FXE#XRTEBTRAE
FEREAERNEN REMERIE - %
RAETZTEBEREE R EH KHEA
EaEERFHEAREE TREGKRKASE
SN EERSREHEERANAETRERE
ABERABINE AR KX EEENE
TESMEEE R BB {E MR EFT &

(@

UTSREDHTLRERS FEINERE
RZREBADLEFRE TNBEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit for the year and retained earnings/
(accumulated losses) in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where
the denomination of the balances is in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit and other equity where the HK$
strengthens against the relevant currency. For a
weakening of the HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and other equity, and the balances below would
be negative. The 5% change in foreign exchange
rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign

1RIF AR Eo exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year.
2024 2023
FEEHNRESRF FERNEM/ (B K
Bm,/ G RtEs1E (gm e
Increase/(decrease)
Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year and
in profit for the year and (increase)/decrease in
retained earnings accumulated losses
H AR H AR
JPY RMB JPY RMB
THET FTAT THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
EXEH . Changes in exchange rate:
BT RINEFHES% HKS$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (2,695) (317) (2,216) (331)
BT RIMNEEZE5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 2,695 317 2,216 331
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(e) Fair value

category

9 Due to the short term nature, the carrying amount of
2 financial instruments not measured at fair value as
detailed in note 37(f) approximates their fair value.
= B 1S FE () Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2024 2023
THT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETHMEE Financial assets
FREHER A2 Financial assets measured at
TREE ! amortised cost:
E 5 R Trade receivables 13,786 10,235
51 R E M FE UK AR Deposits and other receivables 17,083 18,555
FE s B = A B BR TR Amount due from an associate 3,981 3,816
FEWEE AT KR E Dividend receivables from an associate 684 =
HIRIRITFER Pledged bank deposits 10,296 10,240
RITEFANREFRRE Cash at banks and on hand 169,242 219,940
215,072 262,786
TRAaGE Financial liabilities
R At EZ Financial liabilities measured at
TRMAad . amortised cost:
B 5 AR Trade payables 45,634 37,540
FESH B K (TR Accruals and other payables 57,796 55,207
FETRR 2 Dividend payables = 35,172
FETHE A B BRRR Amounts due to associates 3,071 2,323
EafER/NETI=EN Loans from a related company 90,544 182,741
FRITIERR Bank borrowings 269,470 313,009
HE&E Lease liabilities 47,507 48,465
514,022 674,457
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38. MBEEBFIEERRZHR

TR AEERETHAELEEEEFH

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

5 arising from financing activities:
BITIER HEBE fER B
Bank Lease Loans from a
borrowings liabilities related party
(Hizt25) (H15£15) (Htz£34(b))
(note 25) (note 15) (note 34(b))
FHET FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
#2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 365,366 40,998 313,918
MERSMELBNEE ! Changes from financing cash flows:
BIRIRITER Repayments of bank borrowings (27,638) - =
BIERERER Repayments of related party loans = = (150,000)
ENHERENAEED Principal element of lease rental paid - (16,886) -
ENEERENF B9 Interest element of lease rental paid - (1,384) -
[=ENERSS Interest paid (3,262) = (7,287)
MEREREEERLR Total changes from financing cash flows (30,900) (18,270) (157,287)
bE 2 S Exchange adjustments (25,021) - -
Hthish%a . Other changes:
B Interest expense 3,614 1,384 17,988
EBETIRITEMRZ HE Effect on modification of bank borrowing (50) - =
BEIRAERERZFE Effect on modification of related party loans = 8,122
NE Addition - 16,234 -
RIEEE Termination of lease - (2,542) -
HEEsIz=ZE Effect of lease modification - 10,661 -
H{th & 54828 Total other changes 3,564 25,7387 26,110
#2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 313,009 48,465 182,741
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38. MEREIFTELX AR ZHIR @ 38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
TR AEFRES THMELSEEES The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
EA- =) arising from financing activities: (Continued)
RITE™ HEAR MERER
Bank Lease Loans from a
borrowings liabilities related party
(Hiz225) (Hiz£15) (Wis£34(b))
(note 25) (note 15) (note 34(b))
THET FTET FTET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
12024FE181H At 1 January 2024 313,009 48,465 182,741
MEREREEENEE Changes from financing cash flows:
RITERPTIEFIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 20,000 - -
BEBITER Repayments of bank borrowings (34,186) - =
EERERER Repayments of related party loans - - (105,000)
BENHEERENEAEI D Principal element of lease rental paid - (18,083) -
BENHEERENFNEE D Interest element of lease rental paid - (1,433) -
BEFE Interest paid (2,902) - (907)
MEREREEERER Total changes from financing cash flows (17,088) (19,516) (105,907)
PE R aAEE Exchange adjustments (30,075) - -
Hth&sh%a - Other changes:
AMERX Interest expense 3,443 1,433 7,812
BEIIRTTEBR 2 E Effect on modification of bank borrowing 181 - =
BEIMERER 2 2 Effect on modification of related party loans - - 5,898
nE Addition - 1,473 -
HEEBIZE Effect of lease modification - 15,652 -
Hih&Eh 4858 Total other changes 3,624 18,558 13,710
22024F12831H At 31 December 2024 269,470 47,507 90,544
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Glossary

2025FEREHEERS
2025 AGM

A EFE4ME]
Articles of Association

BEE
Board

RBEERRHS
BVI

¥ EATA
CG Code

RABHEREZER
Company or EGL Holdings

=

Director(s)
RREIRITH

EGL Tours

12 B e
Evergloss

BT
FIT

BHTEM
FIT Products

Great Port

AABBERRBEANG

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

RABRERESTNKE T RETABSEZAEA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

RBEBRES
British Virgin Islands

R ERCI P E I R E AT Al
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

REREZERBRAB (RMHSE - 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

KNATBIEE
the director(s) of the Company

REBEERITHBERAS AREIZEEEERE AR
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REEEERFRAR ARRZENEE (EEREFRBEHRG)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

B BHKRE
free independent travellers

BHR{TEZERERKE TR

FIT packages and individual travel elements

ARBTARRAE HITES BIaXEELE - HREZEE -ZHMEF - FTES L
RBETL) ZHMBEA

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors (namely Mr. Yuen
Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and Ms.
Yuen Ho Yee)
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KER
Group
T
HKD/HK$

EREMBRSER]
HKFRSs

=]
JPY

B
Kwok Lai

I BR
Likang

LA
Listing Rules

fEEpa

Model Code

BT
MOP

FEBEOR B REREE

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot

Spring Hotel

KIEDFABIE
Osaka Hinode Hotel

KRB RENBAS
the Company and its subsidiaries

B BRBEAEER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEGMRAGERN(ERMBRSER)
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

HE HEREEE
Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

BEEZERERAR BEEEREZ—
Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

NRBRAR BEEEREZ—
Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

WX PreR s LR Al
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

EHRAIMERCIFAH Y E T AEFETE S5 IR ST
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

BFITT O RFTNEE B
Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH4E:2D¥ B RERAIS) » ZNEE
AABEEZE AL

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH#B1D ¥ 8 R EB5HE)E) , the Group’s
second-owned hotel in Japan

Osaka Hinode Hotel (KBxiDFIEE) » REBN B AER 2 BSOS
Osaka Hinode Hotel (KFr3EDFAEIE), the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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Glossary

s REANRHEM

PRC the People’s Republic of China

FH5 KRG &5 R B RG) (BAEBIHE571E)

SFO the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
i1 PN h)

Share(s) the share(s) of the Company

g e SEST= PN

Shareholder(s) the holder(s) of the Share(s)

TSR FEHR

sq.ft. square feet

7K 7K

sg.m. square meter(s)

B2 PR BEMERXZMBRAF

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
KEE B ZE20245F12831HIEEE

Year the year ended 31 December 2024
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Rmir R ERAF
EGL Holdings Company Limited

(RS SIMRINERLE)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B2 1X5E Stock Code : 6882

RORIHERBR AT EGL Holdings Company Limited

ek ¢ EBNERBEIGEESI RS 152
Address : 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

#9uh Website : www.egltours.com/travel/pages/investor_relations/#eng

REEM
HESR | X BRENME
FSC Paper | Supporting respaonsible forestry
wwwfscorg FSC® C004888
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